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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

NAENKREEZEH
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Annual Results Announcement
2020 Annual General Meeting (2020 AGM)
— Latest time to lodge transfers

12 December 2019
13 February 2020
7 February 2020
(before 4:30 p.m.)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company highly
recommends the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report. Shareholders
may have the right to change their choice of receipt of our future
Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice in
writing to the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.
tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
XEMRE

For the year ended 30 September

B Z9H30HLEE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Total revenue BN 1,314,270
Financing B% 1,085,879
Brokerage & a 133,844
Placing & Underwriting Ac & BB 35 75,920
Corporate Finance TERE 18,627
Net (loss)/profit F(EB), &
Per reported b 549,195
Adjusted' R 754,773
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREAN(EE),BF
(HK cents) (B 8.15
' Excluding aggregate impairment allowances on margin loans and, loans ' #iF& $£49889,300,0007% st (20184F : 205,600,000
and advances, net of reversal, totalling approximately HK$889.3 million BID) 2 R E A RERMB R 2 MERE G
(2018: HK$205.6 million) R D)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

Established in 1993, Emperor Capital Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is a renowned Hong Kong based financial
institution providing a wide range of financial services including
(iy commercial and personal lending as well as margin and
initial public offering (“IPQ”) financing; (ii) brokerage, wealth
management and asset management; (iii) placing and
underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate
finance advisory services. The Company was listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in April 2007.

Over the past decade, the Group has successfully transformed
into an interest income based financial institution and diversified
its income streams. The core strength of the Group lies in its
robust business model, with diverse businesses to withstand
increasingly complex market conditions. The Group currently
operates 4 branches in Hong Kong, and 3 liaison offices in
mainland China.

REBAEEERAR (AR N EH
BRAR(REIAEE])M1993F K © &
—HEEERCREE REEZNE
AR BREOEELREAERUA LT
BEEXAAAZEERE: (V&L U E
EEREEEE (VA EMEITARM
fic 5 B2 B 35 R 75 - fe (iv) 1k 3 Bt & BE R AR
% o KRB R2007TF4ARNE LB AR S
FrERAR (BT ER LT ©

BETFR AEBEEXIDEE SR
BRASAN S BREE  LERARIR
Zt - ARENTIZEZENERER
MEBRAN LT ER - BEEEB
mEMNMISRE - AEEBAAETE
FAEKENE DT LHEFBEAHR
—ABERER -

ECG 12th Listing Anniversary Dinner
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

MARKET REVIEW

The year ended 30 September 2019 (the “Year”) was
challenging. US-China trade war disputes made it harder to
assess the global economic outlook, which in turn adversely
affected the general business environment and investor
sentiment. With additional uncertainties surrounding Brexit and
currency crises in emerging markets, the development of the
global economy was hindered.

A weaker Renminbi and intensifying control of outbound
capital flows reduced appetites for outbound investment of
mainland investors. Especially since June 2019, the relentless
social unrest campaigns resulted in unfavourable investment
sentiment in the local property market and other sectors,
weighing on the Hong Kong and mainland China economies,
and further deterring investors. With reduced clarity regarding
both regional and global outlooks, the Hong Kong financial
market became very volatile. During the Year, the Hang Seng
Index dropped by more than 6%, and closed at 26,092 on 30
September 2019.

™ 15 B B
HE2019F9A30HIELFE(ARFE]) 7
WEEEL c FEFE ZEHAUDF T B2 ERE
/HH‘%@ Eﬁﬂ.%ﬁ iﬁﬁﬁﬁj Ef'%‘m
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%@&%mmE“%F%MX%%MT
ARAAE ARG ERR -

A REE BB RIEINE AR B) A 158 1) JN o0&
BRETAMKEEHINEENER L
HEB2019%6R  THEMTEeTIEE
BERAMYMET SR EMITENRE
EMER EREAEEBERFBRA ML
EoWE—FSHEBIEEERE BN ER
ZIRAI=THE  PEE ST HIE
BEHE cNAFE BEEEHTKEBEBS
6% * N2019F9F30H U 26,0922 -

GBA Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Awards 2019
2019FERNERELZEERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB B B AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Review

During the Year, against the backdrop of the unfavourable
market situation, the Group’s revenue decreased to HK$1,082.9
million (2018: HK$1,314.3 million). The loss for the vyear
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$258.7 million
(2018: profit of HK$549.2 million), which was mainly due to
the downward adjustment in revenue across all business
segments, and the recognition of impairment allowances for
margin loans as well as loans and advances, net of reversal
(“Impairment Allowances”). The Impairment Allowances of
approximately HK$889.3 million were mainly made on certain
clients, after reviewing their accounts portfolio and financial
positions. Excluding the Impairment Allowances, the Group’s
adjusted profit decreased by 16.5% to HK$630.6 million (2018:
HK$754.8 million). Basic loss per share was HK3.84 cents
(2018: basic earnings per share of HK8.15 cents).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by cash mainly generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds raised
from issuance of bonds. As at 30 September 2019, the
Group’s current assets and current liabilities were HK$9,440.2
million (as at 30 September 2018: HK$10,470.3 million) and
HK$2,584.4 million (as at 30 September 2018: HK$3,524.6
million), respectively. As at 30 September 2019, aggregate of
bank balances, cash and pledged bank deposits of the Group
amounted to HK$1,905.5 million (as at 30 September 2018:
HK$1,043.0 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”").

During the Year, the Group entered into a placing agreement for
placing of bonds with an aggregate amount of up to HK$500.0
million on or before 31 January 2019, which was subsequently
extended to 30 April 2019. The bonds are 3-year unsecured
bonds denominated in HK$, bearing interest at 5.25% per
annum payable annually in arrears. Before 30 April 2019, an
aggregate principal amount of HK$500.0 million of bonds were
fully placed and issued in 5 tranches.

Bt %5 B B
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TF 4 £ 51,905, 500 0007 7t (720184
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

During the Year, the Group has entered into another placing
agreement for placing of bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$500.0 million on or before 30 September
2019, which are 3-year unsecured bonds denominated in
HK$, bearing interest at 5.25% per annum payable annually
in arrears. Before 30 September 2019, an aggregate principal
amount of HK$500.0 million of bonds were fully placed and
issued in 4 tranches.

The net proceeds from the above bond placing will be applied
as working capital for expansion of the Group’s existing
businesses, especially for the money lending business, and to
finance any future opportunities the Company may identify, and
repayment of loans and borrowings.

As at 30 September 2019, the total carrying amount of the
Company’s outstanding bonds was approximately HK$2,813.5
million (as at 30 September 2018: HK$2,785.0 million). Principal
amounts of HK$ bonds and United States dollar (“US$”) bonds
were HK$2,802.2 million and US$3.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$25.6 million) respectively. With maturity dates
falling within 2019 and 2022, the HK$ bonds carry coupon
rates ranging between 5.0% and 5.25% per annum, whilst the
US$ bonds carry coupon rates between 4.5% and 4.75% per
annum.

As at 30 September 2019, short-term bank borrowings of the
Group decreased to HK$231.2 million (as at 30 September
2018: HK$460.2 million). These bank borrowings were
denominated in HK$ and carried interest rates approximating
market rates. Together with the bonds, the total borrowings
of the Group amounted to HK$3,044.7 million (as at 30
September 2018: HK$3,245.3 million), with a gearing ratio
of 59.56% (as at 30 September 2018: 59.7%; calculated as
a percentage of total borrowings over total equity of the
Group). The Group did not have any material foreign exchange
exposure as at 30 September 2019.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its
available unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,722.8 million,
as well as the proceeds raised from the issuance of bonds,
the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the
Company considers the Group has sufficient working capital
for its operation and future development.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2019, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (as at 30
September 2018: HK$160.0 million) was pledged to a bank as
security for banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

BUSINESS REVIEW

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-
term unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan,
personal loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property
mortgage). Built on a renowned reputation for delivering
professional and personalised loan services, the Group has
developed a niche in the loan market, providing corporate
and retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions to meet their
corporate goals and personal needs.

Fluctuations in the local stock and property markets have
influenced the demand for the Group’s loans and financing
services as well as its performance. During the Year, the
segment’s revenue decreased by 13.4% to HK$940.0 million
(2018: HK$1,085.9 million), accounting for 86.8% (2018: 82.6%)
of the Group’s total revenue.

With the volatile global financial markets and unfavourable
business environment during the Year, the Group exerted
considerable efforts to reinforce its risk management
and strengthen its capital management. The Group has
implemented stricter scrutiny of loan approval procedures,
and adjusted the interest charge and loan-to-value ratio as
appropriate. Legal proceedings have been initiated in response
to the significant amount of Impairment Allowances during the
Year.

Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards 2019, East Week
BB T4 2 SR BE K £22019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

Brokerage

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong,
mainland China (via Shanghai and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect schemes respectively) and major overseas countries,
as well as wealth management and asset management
services. As at 30 September 2019, the Group operated 4
branches in Hong Kong, covering key commercial and popular
residential areas with high pedestrian flow. The Group also
runs 3 liaison offices in mainland China, which are located in
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, respectively. In addition
to the branches, the Group offers web-based and mobile
trading platforms which enable real-time transaction and
investment portfolio monitoring. During the Year, revenue from
brokerage segment decreased to HK$102.0 million (2018:
HK$133.8 million), mainly attributable to the sluggish investment
sentiment. The segment accounted for 9.4% (2018: 10.2%) of
total revenue.

The Group’s wealth management division provides advice
regarding a wide array of investment services, including
securities, mutual funds, insurance-linked products, and
real estate investment. In its asset management arm, apart
from running private equity fund, the Group also provides
customised discretionary investment services to its customers.

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group
offers placing and underwriting services to various Hong Kong
listed companies. The Group serves as placing agents in equity
and debt placing deals and IPO-related transactions. The
Group also participates in underwriting rights issue exercises.

During the Year, the Group participated in a number of primary
and secondary market financing projects. Revenue from the
placing and underwriting segment was HK$34.5 million (2018:
HK$75.9 million), accounting for 3.2% (2018: 5.8%) of total
revenue.

During the Year, the Group acted as the Lead Manager and
Sole Bookrunner in the IPO of Metropolis Capital Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8621) which was listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange in December 2018. The Group also acted as
the Joint Lead Manager and Underwriter in the IPO of Design
Capital Limited (Stock Code: 1545) which was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor
work for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance
advisory services. Apart from IPO-related services, the Group
offers advisory services for corporate transactions including
placing, rights issue, corporate restructuring and merger and
acquisition.

The Group has engaged in a number of corporate transactions
and IPO projects during the Year. Revenue from the corporate
finance segment was HK$6.4 million (2018: HK$18.6 million),
accounting for 0.6% (2018: 1.4%) of total revenue.

During the Year, the Group acted as the Sole Sponsor in the
reverse takeover and public offer of Da Yu Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1073; formerly known as China Agrotech
Holdings Limited), which resumed its listing and trading of
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in July 2019.

OUTLOOK

Overall foreign direct investment in mainland China rose by
2.9% in the first three quarters of 2019, compared to the same
period last year. Two thirds of the overall investment was from
Hong Kong, with investment via Hong Kong even increasing
by 8.1%, showing Hong Kong remains the key gateway for
investment into mainland China. By capitalising on its unique
competitive advantages of the HK$ being pegged to the US$
plus free capital mobility, Hong Kong continues to be a key
financial hub in China. With the development of the Greater
Bay Area, Hong Kong will fully leverage its strengths as an
international financial centre, and further enhance its role
and support the economic development of the region. The
Group views Hong Kong’s position will remain resilient in the
long-term, regardless of the currently challenging external
environment.

The local government’s policy address included several relief
measures to solve the city’s housing problems, by raising
the mortgage cap for first-time buyers from October 2019.
Coupled with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority subsequently
proposing a base lending rate cut by 25 basis points, this
measure will stimulate property transactions. In view of the
growing demand for property mortgages, the Group will deploy
more resources for seizing this market potential. Meanwhile,
the Group will adopt a very prudent approach, and further
strengthen its credit control measures to minimise potential risks
posed to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WA

With its integrated business model and diversification
strategies, the Group can meet customers’ demands amidst
the volatile economic environment. The Group is well poised
to seize development opportunities, whilst endeavouring to
maintain steady development of its businesses.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 September 2019, the Group had 80 (2018:
98) account executives and 162 (2018: 191) employees.
Total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) were
approximately HK$99.0 million (2018: HK$121.6 million).
Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme on 26 January 2017,
particulars of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEECRBRE

DAISY YEUNG

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

%H’t*i

Daisy Yeung, aged 54, joined the Group in January 1996.
She is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She is responsible for the formulation of
corporate strategy, overseeing operations and the overall
steering of the Company’s management focusing in the areas
of marketing and business development. Ms. Yeung is also
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company, including
Emperor Securities Limited, Emperor Futures Limited, Emperor
Wealth Management Limited and Emperor Asset Management
Limited, all of which she is also a responsible officer under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”). Moreover, she is now
the Permanent Honorary President and Vice-Chairman of The
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and a General Committee
member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. She
has accumulated over 23 years of management experience
in financial industry and has been active in driving the
development of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds
a Bachelor’'s Degree of Science in Business Administration

BRF(EIRZ HER) - 545% © R1996F
1TAMAREE - HAEABEESZEFTRAK
BERAEBZITHRAH - BLITAAR
RZHATTEZECXRERFNEZESRIE
HEEEKE - HAEFFTARIKRE B
BLEBEUANEREFERARAZER
TEEITRAMGHEMERZEREREST -
BEZETNETRARRNZHEHEBE A TZ%
ZE RARAEFSHFEBARA
EHEARAA - %%%*%ﬁﬁﬁ
ANKEEEEEEARRAA  MERA
ZERRIBRB(EALBERATZE
o IRAEBEEREBER
RHG B FRIEELREB LT
B

L8 - BRES/IT
%5%%*@23 &

<R W — Eﬁﬁﬁ
B 7N b 75 5 2% BRITHBELIEE
BIPEE A B

Hi

P D i S
Il 3l > ¢
}%w
& I [ o
_mﬁgm
s«ﬂﬂhwﬂ]

)

g2k
= 8
518
R

Emperor Capital Group Limited R E2EHFEEBEER AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 %R

13



14

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGAREEEBZERE

CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

2R
BITEERAAHE

PEARL CHAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BR fml,
BITEE

Emperor Capital Group Limited %2

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 55, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee and a
member of the Executive Committee of the
Company as well as a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is also a
responsible officer of Emperor Capital Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company under the SFO.
Ms. Choi has over 21 years of experience in the
finance industry covering securities, futures and
corporate finance. Before that, she had worked
in the company secretary profession in both
listed companies as well as professional firms
for over 8 years. Ms. Choi holds a Master’s
Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University, Australia. She is a fellow member
and Chartered Governance Professional of
both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Pearl Chan, aged 46, joined the Board in
June 2011. She is an Executive Director and
a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company. She is also a director and responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited under the
SFO. She has been working in the corporate
finance field for more than 18 years. She was a
practising lawyer in Hong Kong before joining
the Group. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master's Degree in Management from
Macquarie University, Australia.

EEEEARQT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 %

£ M - 5588 © 7200843
ANMAEZEEE - RAEARA
ZHITEERLARIME - &
ﬁiﬂx m@%

)32$ Tﬁf’ﬁlﬂ
%"?ﬂi?ﬁ)ﬂ?ﬁ
AR (RRTE]Z M
(FErKkHEHKL
AB BLTRE
ﬁt21¢g<«%ﬁ,
EEH Hﬂf&m
Tz BEHE LT
MEEMBETRARIMW
%%@8¢°§§ﬁj:%4ﬁél/ﬂl
Macquarie University & 8 &
BEBET 2 BAKER
AWMERITBRABRAGRE
BEAMELAGEARGER

BHCEEATEAL -

~

o)l I

pulpl

s
N <
/ 2

]]]
Ht
U
Dl S
*ﬁk
M
U my o1 3

~— I

MMWM
W@wmm

N

J>>

N I o mr 75 ok N
<88 DI o (O S OmE N O ST m

e Bt 22—
?é'i'%@iﬁN

>E%’H4>

\
/

HIHH D»

E

1§

BRI - 467% @ 702011564
MAEEE - BRAQFZ
HMITESRPITLZEGKE -
BMEAREREER AT
LEERZATBB(ESRK
HEBRIDTZBEAB - &
REERETEEREI8F
K% BERMBEASEAA
BERENERM R THE
BERRNELEETEM LR
MMacquarie University & I
EBIET 80 -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEECRBRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chu Kar Wing, aged 62, joined the Board in May 2010. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chu was previously an independent non-
executive director of another Hong Kong delisted company,
China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
(Stock Code: 735) until 19 August 2019. He has extensive
experience in the banking and finance sector for several well-
known corporations. Moreover, he is now the President of
Canada-China Culture and Education Association. Mr. Chu
holds a Bachelor's Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

Poon Yan Wai, aged 49, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a
Hong Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-
executive director of a Hong Kong listed company, Dragon
Mining Limited (Stock Code: 1712). He was previously an
independent non-executive director of another Hong Kong
listed company, China Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known
as Prosten Health Holdings Limited)(Stock Code: 8026) until
12 February 2018. He has over 20 years of experience in the
auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accountancy and a Master's Degree in Corporate
Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Wan Choi Ha, aged 52, joined the Board in July 2015. She
is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1993 and is now a Senior Partner
of Wan and Leung, Solicitors. Ms. Wan graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Laws.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of financial services
including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin
and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage, wealth management and
asset management; (iii) placing and underwriting services for
listed issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 68 of this report.

No interim dividend (2018: HK2.21 cents per share, amounting
to HK$148.97 million) was paid during the Year.

The Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the Year (2018: HKO0.64 cent per share, amounting to
HK$43.1 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages
5 to 12 of this report. Description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 33 to 58 of this report and
notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2018/2019 of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 71.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 30 September 2019 represented the
aggregate of contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve”
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statement) and
retained profits amounting to approximately HK$101.9 million
and HK$89.2 million respectively (2018: HK$101.9 million and
HK$50.3 million).

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a
subsidiary pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April
2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the Shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(iy  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 168 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$4,696,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURE

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of
unsecured bonds are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 20%
(2018: 24%) of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer
accounted for 6% (2018: 10%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa

Ms. Pearl Chan

Mr. Chan Shek Wah (resigned on 31 August 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Mr. Poon Yan Wai
Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from
pages 13 to 15 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Pearl Chan and Mr. Poon Yan Wai
shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM and, being eligible,
shall offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2020 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 September 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director

EEgR

Capacity/Nature of Interests

B/ EEnE

Ms. Daisy Yeung
BMFL L

Eligible beneficiary of a pr
WAGBRZEEBX @A

Ms. Daisy Yeung Beneficial owner

BT L EmEAA

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa
MR 2+ %*i

Ms. Pearl Chan
BeR {7, 2 22 +

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Note: The above Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Capital Holdings
Limited (“AY Capital Holdings”). AY Capital Holdings was in turn held
by TAS Trust (Jersey) Limited (“TAS”) in trust for a private discretionary
trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”) under
which Ms. Daisy Yeung had deemed interest by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2019, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 26 January 2017. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. No option was granted, exercised or
cancelled under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
and up to 30 September 2019.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at
no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 September 2019, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERREAEMALTZES

PERSONS’ INTERESTS

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 September 2019, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

HARFEESARSITERABRA R
2019 9A30H ' L FA L&A R (BRAR
REENRSTHRABIN ARG HIEE
BHFPHEESRBREEERIREGE
AR EEIEF)YEI36 K BEEN LM
(EEEBEEEMDZERI AR

REBGz2HFR

Long position in the Shares

Number of
Shares % of Issued
Interested Voting Shares
Capacity/Nature of Interests EEREEW HE®1T
B REnttE ROBE BAREERGD%
AY Capital Holdings I\nteirest in a controlled corporation 2,879,521,438 42.72%
15 X KE F R MEESEE 2 #E R (Note)
(7 52)
TAS Trustee of a private trust 2,879,521,438 42.72%
FLABFREZXFEA (Note)
(K1 77)
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private trust 2,879,521,438 42.72%
Bt L AfS5E 2 82 A (Note)
(K1 7F)
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon  Interest of spouse 2,879,521,438 42.72%
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) (IR X
E/NE 2t ([FE2+])
China Huarong Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%
International Holdings REEHERE 2w
Limited
A B 5 B B R AR B R
A7)
Huarong Real Estate Co. Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%
Ld. RRIEFEE 2 #
EREXBERAEERA
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%

Management Co., Ltd.
FEHEREEEERG
BRRAA]

Emperor Capital Group Limited 3
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Number of
Shares % of Issued
Interested Voting Shares
Capacity/Nature of Interests mEREEN HE T
B RERME RHEBE BREERRO%
Taiping Assets Investment Manager 612,900,000 9.09%
Management (HK) KEEREA
Company Limited
KFEEETE(FHE)
BRAF]
Taiping Trustees Limited Trustee 612,900,000 9.09%
RNEEFEBERAA XA
Note: These Shares were the same shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung had ~ #/if: WERONDA/LEX[EZL&ESITRABRK
deemed interest as set out under the section of “Directors’ and Chief - HEROKREEZE Z#ER AR —
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares REGRFL TR R AEAER 2HER
and Debentures” above. B fn e

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2019, the [ _EX#EEIN - R2019F9H30H » K
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware AAIE RN &EEITHA B I H AL
of any person or corporation (other than a Director or chief ATSUEE(BRARRIEZEZHEITHA
executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or B %I R {E 1] A& 7 sk #8 B8 AR 5 & #E B SR
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or RXEFHEBLERNEREEELMZ
underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register. ERERIAE o

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EEHFEEBEER AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & % 23
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED

EENEERS  RHHEGHNZHE
mREEXRS

TRANSACTIONS
Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

1. Master Leasing Agreement (“MLA”)

International Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International”)

Date: 24 May 2018
Parties: (1)  The Company

(2) Emperor
Nature:

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZEHE&E

MLA sets out the framework of the
terms governing all existing and
future tenancy/licensing transaction(s)
(“Tenancy Transaction(s)”) regarding
leasing of certain office properties or
other properties (including signage
or signboard space) from Emperor
International and its subsidiaries
("Emperor International Group”) for the
period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March
2021 with aggregate tenancy annual
caps being set for each of the financial
years ended/ending 30 September
2018, 2019, 2020 and for the six months
ending 31 March 2021 ("Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps”).

EARDE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 %
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Effective Date:

Announcement:

Pursuant to the MLA, relevant members
of the Group and the relevant members
of Emperor International group may from
time to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreements in relation to any
Tenancy Transactions (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)’). The terms of each Definitive
Leasing Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which are
no less favorable to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties. The
terms and rental shall be subject to arm’s
length negotiation and determined based
on the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market rents
on property(ies) comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
Emperor International was a connected
person of the Company and accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the
MLA constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. The MLA
and the Aggregate Annual Caps were
approved by the Board and by the
independent shareholders of Emperor
International. Ms. Daisy Yeung, a
Director, has deemed interest in the
transactions by virtue of being one of
the eligible beneficiaries of the private
discretionary trust of which Emperor
International was being held.

During the Year, the aggregate amounts
of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International or its relevant
members was HK$11,078,000.

9 August 2018, whereupon the
Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps had
replaced all the then annual caps
previously obtained by the Company for
the Tenancy Transactions.

24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

B ER:

I
of

REAHEE R A5kHE
MK B AR R 2K
SEMEEKE QR AT
ST HER SR AT
EABEERZE(EAEE
et ) - EIEXHE H
2GR E IR — MR R
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MRTAREEZIRKETS -
R R T R
EE - WRRIEZEY
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g EENARRZY
XERMHEHEESERE -

REBEEHHRRFI4AE
REFRB/ARR 2 B E
AL BREERZEERET
ETLZRXGERARE 2
FREMERS - BHEER
EMBEHEFELREL
ARREFERHEHK
ZHEBIBRRAHE -EF
BHFLLIRBERER
REOMLARIBELTEE
Bz AZ— SRR
ERXZPHEAER
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2. Financial Services Agreement with Albert Yeung 2. BEBESREXEZERAERAT(H

Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) for Emperor THREXER)AREEBET L
Group (“Emperor Group FSA”) Z2eRBREHR(REEEEH
PR 7% 15 5% 1)
Date: 27 August 2018 HHA: 20188 H27H
Parties: (1)  The Company ST (1) ARA
(2) AY Holdings 2 BXHREFER

Amount
Nature of transaction for the Year

RetE rXEEZEH

HK$°000
TR

(@) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from the listed members 113
under AY Holdings, its subsidiaries and associates (“Emperor Group”)
KEBXKEXEERETLETKEARAR] ENBRARIKRBEBALT(RE
SEDzAE  KLE BRMNEKRA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the listed members of the Emperor -
Group
BTRESEEETETKERAZERTREENRSH

() Maximum IPO loan amount to the listed members of the Emperor Group -
RTHREEEBETEMKERARGESERALAAEEER SR

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the listed members of the Emperor Group -
MTHRESEEETTEMKEBERARIRSTHER T HE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the listed members of the Emperor Group 2,120
REREEBETLTRNEAFCRARNE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &
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Under the Emperor Group FSA, the Group has agreed
to provide to other listed members under Emperor Group
(i) brokerage services for securities, futures and options
trading; (ii) wealth management and asset management
services; (iii) placing and underwriting services; (iv)
financing services including margin loans, IPO loans
and terms loans; and (v) financial advisory services. The
transactions contemplated under the Emperor Group
FSA constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company. Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest
in this agreement by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the private discretionary trusts of which
such other listed members of Emperor Group were being
held.

Term: From 1 October 2018 to 30
September 2021 (on normal
commercial terms and at rates no
more favourable than those available
to other independent third parties)

Announcement: 27 August 2018
Circular: 5 October 2018

Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy
Yeung for the Yeung Family (“Yeung FSA”)

Date: 27 August 2018
Parties: (1)  The Company

(2) Ms. Daisy Yeung

=] ARG HE A%
BREMEEEEMETEM ETK
=i 12 Eiﬂf% Hﬁ‘b)}ﬁ}ﬁgg

4

|||)@E%&@§ﬁﬂﬁﬂ‘n (i )
Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘“ BEARE TK ERAUN
AEEERLTHER: RV)ER
BHARG o ﬁi%%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬁa
HTINETZRGBEKEAR TZ?iZ“‘“
BERS - BRFRLTARBFER

%.EﬁTE@iﬁ}ﬂZE“ﬂﬁ’ﬁA/\
HIEERETZEERTRAZ—
MR AR EERETHEEER -

F HA: H2018F 10 H1H# £ 2021
FOA30H (3% — A i 1§
REIETNERIRE T EA
BN E=HZBIK)

4. 2018%8AH27H

K 20184F10A58
HERFLIRBERIKILZ
SRR (B K EE R
)

HH: 201848 H27H

AR (1) ARE

(2 BHRFLE
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Nature of transaction
REME

Amount
for the Year

FEEZEH
HK$°000
TRERT

(@) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from Ms. Daisy Yeung 2,965
and her associate, but excluding the listed members of the Emperor Group

(“Yeung Family”)

KEGHRFLEIREBBEAL  EMBRE2KEETEHKRERR (5

RREDzHE  &&LE  BRAMANERA

(b)  Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung Family

RTBRREZERFREREHE

()  Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung Family
RTHRRGESERAAHEEER SR

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung Family
BRTHERFRGZESEHERTRE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung Family
KEGRRGEZEHAEAE

29,405

1,165

(f) Commission and fee payment to the Yeung Family for their services being -

provided to the Group

ABRERXNESASERERFZASLER

Under the Yeung FSA, the Group has agreed to provide
to members of the Yeung Family (i) brokerage services
for securities, futures and options trading; (i) wealth
management and asset management services; (iii)
financing services including margin loans, IPO loans and
term loans; and (iv) financial advisory services. The Group
has also agreed to pay commission and fee to the Yeung
Family, including (1) the commission and fee for their
acting as placees or underwriters for the securities of the
Company or for the securities underwritten or placed by
the Group; and (2) referral fee for introducing clients to the
Group relating to the Group’s business. Ms. Daisy Yeung
has deemed interest in this agreement by virtue of being
one of the members of the Yeung Family. As such, the
transactions contemplated under the Yeung FSA constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ ¥
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Term: From 1 October 2018 to 30 F i H2018F10H1H & £ 2021
September 2021 (on normal FIOH30H (F — A XK
commercial terms and at rates no RARBETERIBHTHA
more favourable than those available WY E=FH 2B

to other independent third parties)
Announcement: 27 August 2018 nE: 2018 8A27H
Circular: 5 October 2018 e 20184 10A5H

4. Financial Services Agreement with Mr. Chan Shek 4. EERGEX AT L2 S RRIER

Wah (“Chan FSA”) 2(REKcrREHRED

Date: 12 February 2018 HHA: 2018F2 H12H

Parties: (1)  The Company XA (1) ARQEA

(2) Mr. Chan Shek Wah (“Mr. Chan”) (2 BR# = % E(RE

(resigned as an executive A& (7201958 A 31
Director of the Company on At EAR QR MITE
31 August 2019 and remained = IRELEWABE
as a connected person of the 1UAE  BRAFE
Company during the Year under MR AE ZBEAN
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) +)

Amount
Nature of transaction for the Year

XAME AEEZSH

HK$’000
FTET

(a) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest income from Mr. Chan and his 507
associates (“Chan Family”)
KEREERAEBEALT(REREDZAE  KL4LE  BRALMENK
A

(b)  Maximum loan amount to the Chan Family 30,633
BTRERZXEZ&ESERER

(c) Commission and fee payment to the Chan Family for their services being -
provided to the Group
MRRKRGEXNESAEERERE 2 RER

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EEHFEEBEER AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4
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Under the Chan FSA, the Group has agreed to provide to
Mr. Chan and his associates (“Chan Family”) (i) brokerage
services for securities, futures and options trading as well
as wealth management and asset management services;
and (i) financing services including margin loans, IPO
loans and term loans. The Group has also agreed to pay
commission and fee to the Chan Family for their acting as
placees or underwriters for the securities of the Company
or for the securities underwritten or placed by the Group.
Mr. Chan was an ex-Director of the Company who remained
as a connected person of the Company during the Year.
As such, the transactions contemplated under the Chan
FSA constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company.

Term™: From 12 February 2018 to 30
September 2020 (on normal commercial
terms and at rates no more favourable
than those available to other
independent third parties)

Announcement: 12 February 2018

*

Mr. Chan will cease to be a connected person of the Company
as from 1 September 2020.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transaction as set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions as
shown in item (i), the amount of HK$11,078,000 as incorporated
in item (iii) and items (iv) to (vi) are non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”) in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs disclosed by
the Group as set out from pages 24 to 30 of this Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the Auditor’s Letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INED(s)”) have
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(iy in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current best practice). Remuneration
should be paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Executive and
Non-executive Directors, internal equity of employment
conditions across the Group and applicability of performance
based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid fees in line
with market practice. No individual should determine his or her
own remuneration.
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salaries,
Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and
individual performance, and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 33 to 58 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$141,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
12 December 2019

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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The Directors of the Company have adopted various policies
to ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had complied
fully with the code provisions of the CG Code except with the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer be separate and not be
performed by the same individual.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2019, the Board comprised six Directors
(three Executive Directors and three INEDs) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or
relevant to the management of the business of the Group. The
biographies of the Directors are set out from pages 13 to 15
of this report under the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung (being
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group) has also been
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company by the
Board who provides the Board with strong and consistent
leadership while at the same time leading the management on
effective planning, formulation, implementation and execution
of long-term business strategies of the Group. The Directors
have considered the issue of balance of power of authority
on the Board and believe the current structure (having strong
independent elements in the Board, delegation of authorities
to the management, supervision by the Board and Board
committees) can properly address the potential issue on power
concentration. All Directors, who bring different experience and
expertise to the Company, are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that adequate, complete and reliable
information is received by the Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that the current Board structure functions effectively
and does not intend to make any change thereof.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognised experience
and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment
on issues to be discussed at the Board meetings. They are
appointed for an initial term of three years which is renewed
automatically for successive terms of one year subject to early
termination with written notice being served by either party. The
terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions under the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. The Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of success of the Group
in the interest of the Shareholders by directing and supervising
its affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring
the financial and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all powers and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set out
in a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved by the
Board:

- determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

- approving annual and interim results and financial

reporting;

- declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;
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approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions (except for discloseable transactions in
relation to lease transactions recognizing the right-of-use
asset according to HKFRS 16) under the Listing Rules;

approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions which took place from time to time
under the master agreement(s) previously approved by
the Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules;

approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

approving the establishment of Board committees;

approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited
to risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

approving financial assistance to Directors;

ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.
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Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest of the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is
a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in
order to assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

Name of Directors EEHR
Daisy Yeung GRS
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa 2
Pearl Chan B {, Hf
Chu Kar Wing PN S
Poon Yan Wai ELCE
Wan Choi Ha e
Chan Shek Wah bR £ &

(resigned on 31 August 2019) (7A20194F 8 A31H & 1)

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EECHEBRAEEERA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Yearis AEEZEEHF@H 2B AWM T

set out below:

No. of meetings attended/held
hfid-F V2 Sik-¢ V§ |

Corporate Chairperson 2019 Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance  Executive Meeting
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee with INEDs

o £
TRE
Esps ERZEE® HFHWZEE REZES Z8 Ezved

Executive Directors

HITEE

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Note 1) 10/10 11 11 20/20 11
BT LM 1)

Mr. Chan Shek Wah (Note 2) 10/10 18/19
ReELRLMH 72

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Note 3) 10/10 11 20/20
R+ (H7#3)

Ms. Pearl Chan 10/10 20/20
W, 8 20 &

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Note 4) 10/10 3/3 1 1 1
KEREEN 74

Mr. Poon Yan Wai (Note 5) 10/10 3/3 11 11 11
BLCEEEM75)

Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Note 6) 10/10 3/3 1 1 1
BRER LT (W H6)

General
Meeting

y BIEHT 2019ERE

BEXE

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Total number of meetings held: 10 3 1 1 1 20 1 1
BeEzRN:
Notes: Bt &t -

—_
—_

Chairperson of the Executive Committee BITZEEERF

2. Resigned on 31 August 2019 and automatically ceased to be a member 2. MR2019F8A3IEBTEEH THANITE
of the Executive Committee BgvKE

3. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 3. TXERLZEGER

4. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 4. FMEEEER

5. Chairman of the Audit Committee 5. BREZEEXRE

6. Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 6. REZLZBEBXR
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The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director has been spending sufficient time
in performing their responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time with reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1. Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee currently consists of three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson
of the Committee), Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and
Ms. Pearl Chan. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions)
on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment and
operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of
the Group; (d) approving any transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempt connected transactions
and non-exempt continuing connected transactions
which took place from time to time under the master
agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing
Rules; and (e) having all power and authorities of the
Board except those matters specifically reserved for the
full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.
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Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu Kar
Wing and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 30 September 2018 (“Previous
Year”) and the interim consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 31 March 2019;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

ii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the Previous Year;

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2019 annual general meeting
("2019 AGM”"); and

v. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended
30 September 2019, reviewed the independence of
external auditor and approved its engagement.
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee)
and Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s
policy and structure of all remuneration of Directors and
senior management; (b) the remuneration of INEDs; and
(c) the specific remuneration packages for individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made
recommendation to the Board; and

il reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their
specific packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy
Yeung, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the
Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for
the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing
the time commitment of each Director; and (f) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors
and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee held one meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the
Board,;

i. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iii.  reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

iv. ~made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2019 AGM; and

v. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption
of the Nomination Policy and a revised terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will also assess the
merits and contribution of any Director proposed for re-
election or any candidate nominated to be appointed as
Director that will bring to the Board against the objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

During the Year, the Company had adopted a written
Nomination Policy of the Group. It aims at assisting the
Nomination Committee in identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria and
the nomination procedures for (i) nominating additional
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
for election or re-election of Director at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Chairperson
of the Committee) being an Executive Director, Mr. Poon
Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both being INEDs, a
representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the Company’s
website. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance
Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

i. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv.  reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group;

v. made recommendation to the Board on the adoption
of own model code for securities transactions by
Directors; and

vi. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and ensuring
that the Board policies and procedures are followed. She is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and has facilitated induction and professional development of
the Director. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions (“ECG Securities Code”) on no less
exacting terms than the required standards set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to the Directors, all of them
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code and ECG Securities
Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the
reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before it for approval. The
auditors of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditors’ Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

A.

Goals and objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
updated regularly with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”).

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Systems. Such Systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
losses.

The key objectives of the Systems include:
o safeguarding assets;

o ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

o promoting adherence to policies,
regulations and laws; and

procedures,

o promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering material
controls, including operational, financial and compliance
controls; and (i) risk management functions in the
principal subsidiaries of the Company.
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B. Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows:

(1) The Board

(2

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZEHE&E

responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of the Audit Committee;

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate
the Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

consider major findings on internal control

matters raised by external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board.
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(3) The management (including heads of business

4)

units, departments and divisions)

o design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

o monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations;

o give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

o carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Systems in respect of all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

o alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the
Group; and

o report the results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on regular basis.

C. Risk management

(1)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk analysis, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board
and management based on (i) the severity of the
impact of the risks on the Group’s financial results;
(ii) the probability that the risks will occur; and (iii)
the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation - The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the
risk to an acceptable level or contingency plan
for possible loss scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not. Accidents and other situations involving
loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level
of risk does not increase to an unacceptable
level.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.

Such significant

risks of the Group and their

respective key strategies/control measures are set
out below:

(i)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation
to pay in a timely manner, or that its ability
to perform such obligation may get impaired
before delivery date.
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The Group’s Credit Committee, the ultimate
credit decision-making organ of the Group, is
responsible for putting in place credit policies
and procedures for approving margin financing
and lending portfolio as well as debt recovery
procedures to ensure prompt and effective
recovery of outstanding debts. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk lies mainly in two areas:

a)

Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or
futures may expose the Group to risk
arising from price volatility which may
reduce the customers’ ability to meet
their obligations. The Credit Committee
will prescribe from time to time the
lending limits on individual stock or
on any individual customers and their
respective associates by considering their
creditworthiness, financial strength and the
size of their positions or commitments for
the purpose of monitoring the customer
concentration risk and stock concentration
risk.

The Credit and Risk Control Department
(“CRC Department”) is responsible for
the daily monitoring of the changes in
customers’ positions, their accounts and
financing ratios; to observe strictly the
approved financing and credit policies;
to make margin calls and perform forced
liquidation, where appropriate; to report
to the management regularly and when
abnormalities arise; to closely monitor the
unusual movements and trading halts of
stocks and timely identify non-performing
debts; and to demand higher margin
requirements and step up risk control for
particular customers or products, where
appropriate.
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(ii)

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEZEHE&E
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b) Lending portfolio

All loans and advances are subject to
credit analysis, borrower’s due diligence,
risk assessment and are approved by
the management according to the credit
policies set by the Credit Committee. The
Loans Operation Department is tasked
with the daily monitoring of exposures for
loans and advances.

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department also
conducts independent reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of these policies and controls
to ensure that the Group is operating according
to the established policies, procedures and
credit limits.

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price
and volatility of equities such as stocks, equity
portfolio and stock index futures. The Group
does not have proprietary equity investments.
On the other hand, the Group may be subject
to exposure arising from the underwriting
commitments. The Group mitigates its risks
by conducting detailed analysis of the issuer’s
fundamentals and pricing against market
conditions and appetites. Such risk exposure
is also reduced by way of internal sales and
distribution and by sub-underwritings.
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(i)

(iv)

BRARE

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital
intensive business which may be subject to
liquidity risk. As part of its ordinary brokerage
activities, the Group is also exposed to liquidity
risk arising from timing difference between
settlements with clearing houses or brokers
and customers. The goal of liquidity risk
management is to ensure the Group maintains
adequate liquid capital to fund its business
commitments as well as to comply with the
relevant Financial Resources Rules applying to
various licensed subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s
Finance and Accounts Department and the
management will review and monitor the
Group’s liquidity position on daily basis to
ensure availability of sufficient liquid funds. In
addition, the Group has maintained sufficient
stand-by banking and other facilities in order
to meet any contingency in its operations. The
management believes the Group’s working
capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising
from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. The
Group extends operational risk management
to cover potential losses arising from legal
and compliance breaches. Operational risk is
reduced and controlled through establishing
effective internal controls, clear lines of
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency
planning. It is our corporate culture that the
business and operating line management are
fully aware of their responsibilities for managing
the operational risks of their business units on
a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring
and reviews are conducted by the Compliance
Department and the Internal Audit Department,
which report regularly to the management and
the Audit Committee.

(i)

(iv)
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Internal Control

(1) Operational Control

During the Year, the management analysed the
control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein.

° Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members,
reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal
control system, providing recommendations for
improvement and assessing the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings of
review on the risk management and internal
control are reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

o Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of
any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also
act as a detecting device for spotting unusual
activities.

° Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard the
assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or
external publication.

° Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Group’s
business such as human resources, product
offerings, lending portfolio and customer
information. It also tracks audit trails in the
authorisation system, under which permissions
and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Systems.

° Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each operating segment in
the upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on a regular basis such that the
performance of each operating segment can be
easily accessible.
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Financial Controls

proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly financial
results of operations against budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal
financial reports are prepared to the
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecast.
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(3) Compliance Control
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The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention
of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination
of the inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating crime against money laundering
and financing of terrorism. It provides guideline
to prevent the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employees’ reference.
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E. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation from
the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas of the
Systems.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding
of annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special general
meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific
purposes which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the publication
of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or
circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press release
providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website
at https://www.emperorcapital.com; (iv) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with investors
and analysts on a regular basis and participate investor road
show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2019 AGM was
sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and notices of all other general meetings are sent
to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2019 AGM and chairman/members of
the Board Committees and the external auditors had attended
the 2019 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a
poll voting during the meeting.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed. The Company intends to
provide Shareholders with regular interim and final dividends
(as the case may be) based on the earnings attribution to
its Shareholders after taking into consideration of the factors
stated in the policy, inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for
business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities.
The declaration of dividends or recommendation on such
payment shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and
regulations including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the applicable laws of Bermuda and the memorandum
of association and Bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such
meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided
that an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, such requisition though not
deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in
constitutional documents during the Year.

the Company’s

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditors at the 2020 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu has rendered audit services and certain non-
audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable
to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered

Fir 12 14 IR 75

Audit services

% BR 75

Non-audit services:

FEZBRT :

Review of the preliminary results announcement
BRI RERE
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e ERER
HK$'000

FHETT

2,365
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 68
to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 September 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 September 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

judgment, were of most significance in our

matters were addressed

FEETER
FARETFAERBERMNEXAE - R
RURNEAMBRRNBITRSERN
FH ELEHERELAMEABEGSY
BHmRMEAEREETREDN - LA
THELERREHREBNTR

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

BEESNER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRzESNNEEERETSER

Adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) on the application of Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients
(collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”)

RHEFRBAREREEFTFREFIRA(RBBIEFRY)EFANCEER(BAEERHR])E
XNHRAE BB HEEREIR 2B TR/ [EBHBREEREIR )

We identified the impairment of Advances to
Customers (other than the impairment in stage 3 as a
separate key audit matter), arising from the application
of the ECL Model upon the adoption of HKFRS 9,
as a key audit matter due to the significant judgment
and estimation made by management to determine
the ECL amount at the reporting date.
BPSEARAEEMBERELENFOREERERE
EFEBEEAMELARNTFERREB LEREETSE
BZRE=BRZBERINER S —EBAREFF
B WHBERETREANcEREEBEESER
FEEREIELHE XA RMEE -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the ECL measurement involves significant
management judgement and estimation, with the
involvement of the Group’s external specialist, in (i)
the selection of appropriate models and key inputs
used in the ECL model, including the probability of
default (“PD”) and loss given default (“LGD”), and (ii)
the selection and use of reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information without undue cost
or effort in the ECL model to estimate the future
movement of different economic drivers and how
these drivers will affect each other and the correlation
with the key inputs, including PD and LGD.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers included:

B BHERATEFPERZBRERTHRF B

- Understanding the Group’s established credit
risk policies and procedures for impairment
assessment in relation to the application of ECL
model under HKFRS 9, including model set up
and approval and selection and application of
assumptions and key inputs into the model,

- TR SEEEREEERBBELRERAETE
B EERFRE THRRAEEBERREAN
MEGERET  BEEANRTLELN  BE
Ko FEFR N AR =X B9 R 3R K R 42 o A 3R

- Understanding the key controls over ongoing
monitoring processes, including:

- THBEEERBAENFEEE - B

(i) the process of margin call procedures
for margin shortfall and identification of
impaired accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing

in securities;

() RESTRHETHBKRESEFLE
FEREBEZREEHFEEXEB 2RBRKITRE
EPERFWIEF

(i) the process of periodic reviews for
identification of any indicators of deterioration
of the creditability of borrowers through
searching of publicly available information
and any delinquency in loans or interest
repayment for loans and advances;

(i) MERRBFERBESARAGERETE
ERAGEBERBREMERLIEE
TR TEHEHEF:

REBHZEEERLF
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ARBFASHEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

EMzE R ERAREASHE

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

MRETERE

Adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) on the application of Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL”) Model on loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients
(collectively referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) (continued)

M EFRBAREUNEETFREFIRA (BB IEFBS)EAREEER((ARHEERHR)E

AMERAEBY B REER EIR BT A [ EBYBEHEERFEIF ) (&)

The management further assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) for
exposures since initial recognition. If there has been
a SICR, the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information with
significant judgement involved.
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The total gross amount of (i) loans and advances
and (i) accounts receivable from secured margin
clients under stages 1 and 2 as at 30 September
2019 are HK$2,997,012,000 and HK$2,445,478,000
less impairment loss of HK$10,464,000 and
HK$23,586,000 respectively. Please see notes 20, 21
and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
20195 9A30H  F—RE_BRETHHER K
BRAL(NEREERAFREFRERESEIINA
2,997,012,0007 7T & 2,445,478,000%8 7T * BE R EE
18 9 5l £10,464,0007% 7t 523,586,000/ 7T ° 75 2
fRE B R M 5E20 ~ 21K%37 ©

Assessing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s
judgement on staging criteria for determining if
SICR has occurred (stage 1 or 2) or the financial
asset is credit-impaired (stage 3) and the
basis for classification of exposures into the 3
stages as required by HKFRS 9 and examining
supporting information on a sample basis to
assess the appropriateness of the classification
of loan exposures as at the end of the reporting
period;

AEEEEHECRAHBEERRBEIEM
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ﬁ%ﬂrbﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁéi&%,ﬁﬁﬂEE’JE%ﬁJﬁLEﬁ%%ﬁE’U'Iﬁ%

Evaluating, together with our internal
valuation specialists, the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the ECL models and
assumptions, information and parameters
used in the model in establishing the forward
looking factors, and the relationship between
the forward looking factors and the key inputs,
including PD and LGD, in the ECL model to
determine the impairment loss of Advances to
Customers in stage 1 or 2; and
HEMOAFEEERFLEREEBEERN
R#EEAMEMRZRAMANRE  EHE2
BHABHERBEN KT HEHEEEER
AANFIEEERERREEN AR (BREORE
NMENER)NER UETFEF-—HEF_REN
AEFBRERERERE: &

Testing the accuracy and completeness of key
data sources applied in the ECL computation
on a sample basis by checking to the Group’s
supporting information, the relevant loan files
and external data source, as applicable.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

BEEFESSRE

BARBFASEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

EMzBE O AEE@ARESSTRE)

Impairment of loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients (collectively
referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) at Stage 3

RE-ZIERZEFRBUREURELAFREFRA (BB EEFRH])ZEE

We identified the impairment of Advances to
Customers at Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to
the involvement of significant management estimation
in determining the ECL amount.
BHPRBRE=ZRERZOTFERZHERRL —E
AREAFE MWOHRETEHRGEEREZS A
HREREBBMEGT -

In assessing the lifetime ECL on Advances to
Customers classified as stage 3, the Group
performed the assessment based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the borrowers, general economic
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions with significant judgment
involved. The Group also reviews the value of the
collateral received from the customers in determining
the impairment. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.
RAEDERFE=ZRROOTFBRNEHEHRE
EFER BEEERE SSEMNBEEEERRE
REETHE  TRBERANFERE  RNBEHR
He) — R QBEMRRMARRARTARETHAE - B
BREBRAE - EEBETRETREREFHNDK
EPONERMEE - At ARRESRENTRLE
MAANAERREBETHERN  UREEERG
AEEREBELRNESR -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
Advances to Customers at Stage 3 included those
covered in the above key audit matter related to ECL
model and the following additional procedures:

B BEEARE=-"RRAMTFERZHENTH
EFReRftXEMENEEEREXNERETS
HATREEAR TN

- Corroborating and challenging management’s
assessment and key estimations used in
determining expectation of reasonably possible
outcomes on the recoverability of the loans to
the borrower against our understanding of the
situation and the industries of the borrowers or
guarantor and collateral, if any, from reading
public announcements and other externally
available information; and

- BEMBEBEMNQAEREMINEEAIEE R HE
FRAHERANLERR(WH) B 1550 & PR
TEHNER BTENEREEEETHR KOG
HKARNERN SRR & RTEHI T A RO RT 1 &
RS L A &

- Examining underlying documentation supporting

the management’s key estimations used in
determining the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, including the historical
repayment records and any settlement
subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
fair value of the collateral, if any, and other
information available for the creditability of those
borrowers.

- REXBEEEEEMHRARKASRERED

PR ST AR RE XXM - BIEE L B A 8 MR
THRENEMNGEE - ERRORFE@E) A
EZEERACENEMAGSER -

REBHZEEERLF



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEERE

Key Audit Matters (continued) BRETEH(E)

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

WG B B IH () B2 R E B R B (4

Impairment of loans and advances and accounts receivable from secured margin clients (collectively
referred to as the “Advances to Customers”) at Stage 3 (continued)

RE-ZFERZEFRBHREREBFAREFIES (REBBIAEF B2 BE(F)

As set out in notes 20, 21, and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, the total gross
amount as at 30 September 2019 of (i) loans and
advances and (ii) accounts receivable from secured
margin clients amounted to HK$3,487,726,000
and HK$4,003,638,000 respectively, of which
HK$490,714,000 and HK$1,558,160,000 respectively
are classified as Stage 3.

BUNER A M HRER M FE20 « 21 37FTH  7H20194F9
A30H  (\ERERBHRUR(NVEREERFREPE
P48 & 5 9 Bl £3,487,726,0007% JT &%4,003,638,000
77T © HH1490,714,0007% 7T }21,558,160,00078 7T 2 Al
PERE=FBR -

An ECL of HK$405,720,000 and HK$706,129,000 has
been recognised in relation to (i) loans and advances
and (i) accounts receivable from secured margin
clients under stage 3, respectively, as disclosed in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
MINFEE T B MRMATATE - 2 ?dﬁ"*IZE“ExIET
MOEFREERRNEREERARE PR
BHEEEESD %\J7,%405,720,000,%75&706,129,000
T ©

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EEHFEEBEER AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRHERE

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BB ES RSB RRAR
BzEE

AMMER RUGAHBRAERRT
A7 1E B RO BREF O 85 BR T 2 B B A 4 2R
OIS A RIRE - W RB(EREDT
E)EOBRNAEERN R BRELABIER
B RO BMBE RIS - RN
JETABEELMAR « KATLFRAIT
REZNBHEML A LEEETEE
REZEMEY - ARRELHIENR
T ETRRBRB(EBE LR
MBH  EX—BAEBRAFERSE
B o 8RR DAt BRRF SR BE R Sl A
MRADANEMEE N E @KLY
SHEAPHRREMERBERBREAE
HY 0 48 R TE BI85 BR UL AR
fEEX

R (BB BRI (TR H0BIZ
BINERTEL AN - RET ERE R
B o B

o ERIAMET A MR R FE 28R AR T 1B B AR
EUBRRATFEENBREAN R
% WA RMITEAEF AR EL
R - AR EETE R AE E K EER
EoERBRMBERZER - BRNAEF
AEESRER BE FERERE
RER - SORBERARES 2 £ B’
HoRBEBR A MGFME R 2 E AR
Rt e B = IO R BE B R A SR AR T 8
BHE KRR e E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZRHERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZEERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Eric Tong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 December 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEREkEMEEKE R

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i 7 TERT TAET

Revenue U A

Commission and fee income 4 & & H kA 6 REREY 215,628
Interest income ] 8 W A 6 964,670 1,098,642
1,082,854 1,314,270
Other operating income E fh 48 & g A 6,884 9,946
Impairment allowances, net of reversal J& {8 % # - 1B # [ 7 (889,284) (205,578)
Staff costs 8 T A A 8 (98,999) (121,642)
Commission expenses i & 3% H (44,683) (63,684)
Other expenses Hfth 3 i} (108,850) (117,126)
Finance costs 81 7% & F 9 (176,261) (153,978)
Share of loss of an associate F& 1 — & B & A7) 2 E5 18 (1,880) (2,160)
(Loss) profit before taxation B i B (/&5 18) i I 12 (230,219) 660,048
Taxation 18 13 (28,487) (110,853)
(Loss) profit for the year & E (& #8) & 7 (258,706) 549,195
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year attributable to owners of the Company (258,706) 549,195

ARRIBEAEAREFE(ER) AN E2E(FX) W ERE
(Loss) earnings per share SR (EiE) B F|

Basic # A< 15 HK(3.84) cents# HK8.15 cents B 1l

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
68 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ #



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBARRR
At 30 September 2019 72019 9H30H

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Non-current assets R 8 & E

Property and equipment ¥ 3 & 3% & 7,387
Intangible assets £ 2 & & -
Interest in an associate # — & B & Q7 2 # & -
Amount due from an associate f& U — B2 N7 FKI1E 3,435 5,315
Other assets Hfth & & 8,871 9,320
Loans and advances B & & 2 3% 419,757 279,297
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income -
FRHEMPARGERATEIEZEREE
Available-for-sale investment AJ i H & & & -
Deferred tax assets i i £t 78 & & 5,618 -
446,987 301,319
Current assets Hi B & &
Accounts receivable & I BR & 3,428,457 5,524,233
Loans and advances B 7 & #3k 2,651,785 2,230,649
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments 10,403 30,125
H W ER K - 12 RIERNKIE
Tax recoverable A] [8] 4 & 18 27,338 -
Pledged bank deposits — general accounts 160,000 160,000
EERRITER - —REP
Bank balances and cash — segregated accounts 1,416,696 1,642,300
RITEBRERE - BILERF
Bank balances and cash — general accounts 1,745,508 883,041
RITHEBRERE - —RERP
9,440,187 10,470,348

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEBA5EBEHR LT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MBI R R

At 30 September 2019 720194 9H30H

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000

FiE FH

Current liabilities RE A&

Accounts payable F& 1< BE 3k 24 1,564,292 1,835,634
Other creditors and accrued charges E b &~ B8R 2K B =1 & F 127,879 122,454
Tax liabilities %18 & (& 34,150 136,443
Short-term bank borrowings %2 8 §R 17 & 5% 26 231,173 460,225

Bonds issued B %11 E% 27 626,904 969,859
2,584,398 3,524,615

Net current assets F R E & E 6,855,789 6,945,733
Total assets less current liabilities #8 & 2 i 2 B (& 7,302,776 7,247,052
Non-current liabilities 3% 8 & &

Bonds issued O3 1TE %5 27 2,186,640 1,815,181
Net assets BEE 5,116,136 5,431,871
Capital and reserves EAX K i &

Share capital %7 28 67,408 67,408

Reserves fi# & 5,048,728 5,364,463
Total equity # 35 # 58 5,116,136 5,431,871

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 167 were &= £ & 201912 4128 #t /f [ #% 4 H E]
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on #68EEF167E 2ixa M B HmE - WHT

12 December 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: NEERRESFEEE:
DAISY YEUNG CHOI SUK HING, LOUISA
B B0 58
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
1 2

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company
FAREAAELS

Capital
contribution

Share Share Special reserve Translation Retained
capital premium reserve BEX reserve profits Total

BkEx  ROEE KHARE AARE RERE  REEA st

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR TR TET TR TR TET TR

At 1 October 2017 67408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 1,855,486 5,134,110
201710318

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 549195 549195
FEANRZARZAR

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - (251,434) (251,434)
REDEZ KB

At 30 September 2018 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 2,153,247 5,431,871

12018 9A30H

HKFRS 9 adjustment (note 2) - - - - - (13,888) (13,888)

ERUBREENEORAE (M1

At 1 October 2018 (restated) 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 2,139,359 5,417,983

R2018F10A1B (K &)

Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - - - (258,706) (258,706)
FEFRRZARXAR

Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - (43,141) (43,141)
BRIEDRZRE

At 30 September 2019 67,408 3,199,289 9,950 2,004 (27) 1,837,512 5,116,136
120199 430H

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal B RIFEEIEARFMNB AR HITEERK
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company in  Z E{&# A QAR K KR2007F4H828 2 &
issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company B EAWE —FEHEARMETZRHMHZ
for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group reorganisation E{ER Z =58 -

on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution EXBAFEEBEIEARCBEFES THESE
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of EIEEMmMMA—HMRARXMEBAFTEIEHAZ
management fee in previous years. FRIE o

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& T &
(Loss) profit before taxation B &t 51 (/& 18 ) & 7
Adjustments for: F§ % :
Finance costs B4 # fk A
Interest income | B W A
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ % N & & 2T &
Share of loss of an associate J& 15— &5 & A5 2 & &

Impairment allowances, net of reversal Ji (B # & + 315 # [

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEEEPAZKLEHERE

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable J& U BE 3 2 38 4> (3% 1n)
Decrease in other assets E b & & 2 i
Increase in loans and advances B 3k & 8 3 2 3 0

Decrease (increase) in other debtors, deposits and prepayments
Hh W AR K~ 1R & RTER KRIE 2 B4 (&)

Decrease in bank balances and cash — segregated accounts

BITERERS - BIYEPZED
Decrease in accounts payable J& < 8k 22 )&

Decrease in other creditors and accrued charges

Hit BN RR R EFER 2D

Cash generated from (used in) operations & & () & B 2 H &
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 21 & & F15 #

The People’s Republic of China (*PRC”) Tax paid
ERHREARAME(HE])HIE

Canada income tax paid Bt jin& KX FAT5 8
Interest paid (excluding bond interest) B4 | B (T B FEE 5T B)

Interest received & U F] &

NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REARMEEETDH 2R FE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & #

2019
HK$’000
FTERT

(230,219)

176,261

(964,670)
2,771
1,880

889,284
(124,693)

1,572,477
449
(944,146)

19,722

225,604

(271,342)

(23,524)

454,547
(159,806)

(122)

(1,131)
(10,573)

964,670

1,247,585

2018
HK$'000
TAET

660,048

153,978

(1,098,642)
1,872
2,160

205,578

(75,006)

(572,352)
3,989
(727,947)

(8,259)

212,175

(379,279)

(6,649)

(1,553,328)
(127,982)

(52)

(31,195)

1,098,642

(613,915)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBREMRNER

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

INVESTING ACTIVITIES &R & & &
Purchase of property and equipment & B %) 3 & &

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

HEMEREFEZABRA

Net cash inflows on deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

BIERE-—HNBARIZESRAFR

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ARREEBHZHESFH

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @ & & &

Drawdown on bank borrowings 2 EUSRE 17 & &
Repayment of bank borrowings {& i iF 17 & &
Proceeds from bonds issuance %17 & % FT 13 318
Redemption of bonds issued & [E B 2 17 {& %

Bonds issuing cost paid & & % 3 17 B 2

Interest paid on bonds issued B 1TE 4 2 11 % B

Dividend paid & 1 i% B

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(AR)REMEZBH2REFRE

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBEEEY 2B MFHE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

FUOAZRERREEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

FRZ2AERREEEY

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBEEEYZERIN

Bank balances and cash — general accounts
RITEHRERE - —REP

Disclosure in relation to the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities are detailed in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

2019
HK$°000
Tt

(4,696)

6

(4,690)

6,356,000
(6,585,052)
1,000,000

(971,500)

(9,438)

(127,297)

(43,141)
(380,428)

862,467

883,041

1,745,508

1,745,508

2018
HK$'000
TAET

(4,146)

472

(3,669)

52,702,964
(52,571,250)
1,199,870
(11,268)
(82,386)

(251,434)

986,496

368,912

514,129

883,041

883,041

EEAMETEMSIBNEEEH 2EER
B 7% sR R B sE3 1R FE it -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

1.

General

Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and acts as an investment holding company.
The immediate holding company is Emperor Capital Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor Capital Holdings”), which is a
limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”). The ultimate holding company is Albert
Yeung Capital Holdings Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire issued share capital of
Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited is in turn held by
TAS Trust (Jersey) Limited, being the trustee of a private
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year which are relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related

Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2  Classification and measurement
of share-based Payment

Transactions

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs

2014 — 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for (1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities; (2)
expected credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and other
items (for example contract assets (if any)) and (3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 October 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 October 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 30 September 2018 and the carrying amounts as at
1 October 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“HKAS 39”).

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at
the date of initial application, 1 October 2018:

Loans and
advances

BERRBR
HK$°000
TRERT

Closing balance at 30 September 2018

2. BAHTREETEBMBER

HEA(ERBMEHREER])
(4&)
NETEREBMEREERE
CHELE 2T ERE
TREHEPRBEESUBEREEDEI
RRE BT EAFEI0R N YL E R
HEA (201810 A1) Al ge HIRFE HA(E
BEFEBEzeMmEENSRABENALRE
WIEBZ DB AT E:

Retained
profits

Deferred
tax assets

IE 3 B 18
'E
HK$°000
TR

Accounts
receivable

FE U B 5K
HK$°000
TR

R & i R
HK$°000
TERT

20185 9H30H 2 F R4 &
— HKAS 39 2,509,946 5,524,233 - 2,153,247
- EBEHEREIR
Effect arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9:
NTEBEEBUNBREEAFIRZEE:
Remeasurement E it &
Impairment allowances under ECL model (5,184) (11,381) 2,677 (13,888)
EHEEEREXNE T ZRERE
Opening balance at 1 October 2018 2,504,762 5,512,852 2,677 2,139,359

R2018F10A1H 2 F ¥ & 84

Except for the above adjustments arising from ECL under
HKFRS 9 as of 1 October 2018, there is no reclassification
adjustment under HKFRS 9 except that the Group elected to
present in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) for the fair
value changes of an equity investment of HK$ Nil previously
classified as available-for-sale ("AFS”) equity investment. This
investment is not held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9, HK$ Nil were reclassified from AFS investments to
equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”).

BR2018F10 A1HIREE B KR E
HBIFOFFTEA ZEHEEEIBE
R AR AEBERENEM
cEWE((HE2mk ] 275 %7
NEAIUHEE(AIHEE)ERIR
BZRAFEEHTHE LI WEEM
BEEBVBERELENFRELZ
BEFOERAE - ZEREDWIERFE
BEEAE  BBEATSRAZLERDY
- RUTEBEBYBIRELERSE
O BE B LHAHEHEHERESE
FoEZEBEMEARTZIZRATFE
R EBEMEEm KSR AFED
BRDHEEZTA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Notes:

(a) Impairment under ECL model

The following table reconciles the impairment allowances
measured in accordance with HKAS 39 (under incurred loss
model) as at 30 September 2018 to the new impairment
allowances measured with HKFRS 9 (under ECL model) at 1
October 2018:

FERFTREBETEBUBIR
HEA(FBUBREEDD
(#&)
NTEAEBYBHREERE
RREEZEEME(E)

it

(a) FEHEEFEEXNETZRE
TR 5 R2018F9A30H IR IEF H
SR FE39 (BEELBIBIER) A
2 7 M ERE RN 201810 1B IR E
EAVBREENFIOFEHEER
BER)FEZHBEREYE:

Impairment Additional Impairment
allowances impairment allowances
under allowances under under
HKAS 39 remeasurement HKFRS 9
BRESBEE BESBHK
B 3955 2 EFtEZ WMEEAFIR
WAE RS BN ERE ZRERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FTEx FTER
Loans and advances B 3 K& # X 33,634 5184 38,818
Accounts receivable from secured margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities 206,416 11,381 217,797
BHREEXEB BN EERAFREPEX
Total #&35t 240,050 16,565 256,615
Such amount represents the impairment under ECL model upon B BEERRAE BB REERF9
application of HKFRS 9. KEEPEEBEEXBEBTZRE -
Loss allowances for financial assets that are not the result of HREVRERUREERREEX
transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15, are measured on TRIZAN - WIER BN B RELANE
12-month ECL (“12m ECL’) basis (“Stage 1”) as there had been SR BENRGTEACEREER
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, BEEDIZ12E AEBEEEE (12
except for those loans and advances and accounts receivable BMAEHEEEENDEESNE(E
from secured margin clients which are measured on lifetime ECL —BEER D) - ME1E B R K08 mE
basis as those credit risk had increased significantly (“Stage (I% ZFFER ) 5k B ¥ 1A FE 3R LA SR 4% 5F
2”) or assessed to be credit-impaired (“Stage 3”) since initial ERAEREEREE(E=REKR] -
recognition. MEKEERAREPRERUARER
RBFAAFERMBEREEBIER
HEEFE -
As at 1 October 2018, the additional credit allowance of M2018F10R1H - B HN 5 B B B
HK$16,565,000 has been recognised against the retained profits. 16,565,000/ 7t B R R B & 7 P i
The additional impairment allowance is charged against the R BHEBINAEREBEIEEBEE
respective asset. Deferred tax assets of HK$2,677,000 have been Pk - IEEMIBE E2,677,0008 7T
recognised for the additional loss allowance. ERAREINEIBEBME

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Note: (continued)

(@) Impairment under ECL model (continued)

Based on the assessment performed on the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9, the directors of the Company considered
that the additional impairment allowances in relation to other
assets, other debtors and deposits, accounts receivable (except
for accounts receivable from secured margin clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities), amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits
are insignificant to the financial performance and position of
the Group and hence have not been recorded due to being
immaterial.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue’,
HKAS 11 *“Construction Contracts” and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 October 2018.
Any difference at the date initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated. The application of HKFRS 15 on
1 October 2018 has no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions at the initial application,
and accordingly, there is no adjustment on the opening
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

- Commission income on dealing in securities, futures
and options contracts;

- Commission income on underwriting and placing and
insurance brokerage and wealth management;

- Corporate financial advisory service fee; and

- Interest income from a financial asset (under HKFRS 9
as detailed previously)

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
15 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and

R RGBT ERBMBER
SEA(TERMBREERD
(&)

B 5845 18 18 R 4 202 3 FT I AR 48

interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective, which may be relevant to

the Group:
HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Leases'

Insurance Contracts?®

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation'

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment

or Settlement’

Amendments to HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint
Ventures!

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting and replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows and operating cash flows respectively by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 30 September 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$18,371,000 as disclosed in note 33. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$3,620,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and
not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening retained
profit without restating comparative information.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, investment in an associate are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses
of associates exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associates.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS
15 on 1 October 2018)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or services (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS
15 on 1 October 2018) (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liabilities relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Description of the Group’s performance obligation of main
source of income under the scope of HKFRS 15 are as
follows:

Brokerage

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures and options contracts. Commission income
is recognised at a point in time on the execution date of
the trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group provides custodian and
handling services for securities, futures and options customer
accounts. Fee income is recognised when the transaction
is executed and service is completed, except for custodian
service fee which is recognised over time.

Corporate finance

The Group provides placing, underwriting or sub-
underwriting services to customers for their fund raising
activities in equity and debt capital markets. Revenue is
recognised when the relevant placing, underwriting, sub-
underwriting are completed. Accordingly, the revenue is
recognised at a point in time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (upon application of HKFRS
15 on 1 October 2018) (continued)

Corporate finance (continued)

The Group also provides sponsoring services to clients
for their fund raising activities and corporate advisory
services to corporate clients for their corporate actions.
The Group considers that all the services promised in a
particular contract of being a sponsor or corporate advisor
are interdependent and interrelated and should be therefore
accounted for as a single performance obligation. As
there is enforceable right to payment for the Group for the
performance of services completed up to date based on
the contracts with customers regarding sponsor or corporate
advisory services, the revenue is recognised over time based
on the stage of completion of the contract, the services
transferred to customers up to date.

Asset management

The Group provides asset management services to
customers. The customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided by the Group, hence the
revenue is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time. Asset management fee income is charged at a
fixed percentage per month of the net asset value of the
managed accounts under management of the Group.

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when there
is a positive performance for the relevant performance period
and it is recognised at the end of the relevant performance
period, when it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

Interest income

The Group provides margin financing, fixed-rate and
variable-rate loans to the customers. Interest income is
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method as described in the accounting policy of financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 October 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable arising from financial services and is
recognised on the following basis:

o Commission income for broking business of securities,
futures and option dealing is recorded as income when
the trades are executed.

o Insurance brokerage commission is recognised when
the services are rendered.

° Advisory, other corporate finance services fee income,
asset and wealth management fee income are
recognised when the services are rendered.

. Commission income on underwriting and placing is
recorded as income in accordance with the terms of
underlying agreements when the relevant significant
acts have been completed;

o Other fee income arising from broking business of
securities (e.g. handling fee income) is recognised
when the relevant transactions have been arranged or
the relevant services have been rendered.

° Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the date of grant and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Employment benefit

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employment benefit (continued)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based on approved
formulas that take into consideration the profit attributable to
the Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

All other short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for
benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries,
and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 October 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 October 2018)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading and is
not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination) in OCI, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 October 2018)
(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period (with the amortised cost being the
gross carrying amount less the impairment allowance).
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest income on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including accounts receivable that is not result
of transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15, loans and
advances, other debtors and deposits, pledged bank
deposits — general accounts, bank balances and cash -
general accounts, bank balances and cash — segregated
accounts and other assets). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable and contract assets (if any) that result from
transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15 and the ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with debtors having similar credit ratings.

For all other instruments, the Group applies the general
approach to measure ECL for all financial assets and
loan commitments, if any, which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. On this basis, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS

9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether

credit risk has

increased significantly:

significant changes in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument
or similar financial instruments with the same
expected life;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant change in the
operating results of the borrower;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower that results in a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of
third-party guarantees or credit enhancements;

an actual or expected significant change in the
quality of credit enhancement;

significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMERRME
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due (except for
accounts receivable from secured margin clients where
a shorter period of “past due” has been applied by the
directors in view of the nature of business operation
and practice in managing the credit risk), unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

For loan commitments, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a loan commitment, the Group considers
changes in the risk of a default occurring on the loan
to which a loan commitment relates.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due (except
for accounts receivable from secured margin clients
where a shorter period of “past due” has been applied
by the directors in view of the nature of business
operation and practice in managing the credit risk),
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS

9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

3.

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS

9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

v)

Emperor Capital Group Limited

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default are based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is the present
value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitments draws down the loan, and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down.

For ECL on loan commitments for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will
apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the
extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls
being discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable from secured margin clients and loans
and advances where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account and
presented under "net of allowances for impairment”.

In assessing the lifetime ECL for financial assets, the
Group performs the assessment based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
specific to the borrowers and the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions. The Group also reviews the value of
collateral received from the customers in measuring
impairment. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating the impairment amount are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 October 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two
categories, including loans and receivables and AFS
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, other debtors and deposits, amount due from
an associate, bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 October 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial
impairment could include:

assets, objective evidence of

° significant financial issuer or

counterparty; or

difficulty of the

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 October 2018) (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When the
accounts receivable and loans and advances are considered
uncollectible upon the bankruptcy of customers, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For impairment assessment, each receivable is reviewed
individually at the end of each month. Specifically, in
assessing impairment for each receivable, management
estimates the present value of future cash flows which are
expected to be received, taking into account the borrower’s
financial situation and the net realisable value of the
underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Any impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the loan’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset
and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group:

° currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

° intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Source of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The application of ECL Model

The directors of the Company estimate the amount of loss
allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortised cost
based on the credit risk of the respective financial instrument.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument. The assessment of the credit risk and therefore
expected cash flows of the respective financial instrument
involves a high degree of estimation and uncertainty.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected
or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
The information about the ECL and the financial assets at
amortised cost are disclosed in respective notes to the
financial statements.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the Risk Management
Department is responsible in developing and maintaining
the processes for measuring ECL including monitoring of
credit risk, incorporation of forward looking information and
the method used to measure ECL; and ensuring that the
Group has policies and procedures in place to appropriately
maintain and validate models used to assess and measure
ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Source of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group employs experts who use external and internal
information to generate scenarios of future forecasts of
relevant economic variables. The internal and external
information used includes the historical data of the Group
and economic data and forecasts published by governmental
bodies and monetary authorities respectively. Accordingly,
when measuring ECL the Group selects and uses reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information without
undue cost or effort in its assessment, which is based
on assumptions and estimates for the future movement of
different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect
each other as well as the correlation.

Measurement of ECL

Probability of default ("PD”) constitutes a key input in
measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon and the calculation is based on
reasonable and appropriate statistical rating models selected
by the management with estimation. These statistical
models are based on market data (where available), as
well as internal data comprising both quantitative and
qualitative factors which includes historical data, assumptions
and expectations of future conditions. The management
gathers this information and adjust the data to reflect
probability-weighted forward looking information that is
reasonable and supportable and available without undue
cost or effort.

Loss Given Default ("LGD”) is an estimate of the loss
arising on default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender
would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from
collateral and integral credit enhancements with estimation
involved. The LGD models for secured assets consider
forecasts of future collateral valuation taking into account
sale discounts, transaction volume of the secured assets and
seniority of claim. For unsecured loans, the calculation of
LGD includes the judgments in determining the proportion
of loan recovered after default and the duration of recovery.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Source of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
The application of ECL Model (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

In assessing the lifetime ECL on credit-impaired financial
assets classified as stage 3, the Group performs the
assessment based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors or borrowers, which include any (i) significant
financial difficulty of the debtors or borrowers, (ii) breach
of contract or probability that the debtors or borrowers
will enter bankruptcy and (iii) the status and progress of
financial restructuring, general economic conditions and
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions with significant judgments
involved. Moreover, the Group also reviews and assesses
the fair value of the collateral received from the customers
in determining the impairment.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit
risk and expected credit losses are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk in measurement of ECL

As explained in note 3, the Group monitors all financial
assets that are subject to impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, except for certain loans and
advances and account receivables from margin clients which
are measured on lifetime ECL basis as for those credit risk
had increased significantly since initial recognition. If there
has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12m ECL. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes
a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether
the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased
the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Information that will be taken
into account when assessing whatever there is significant
increase in credit risks are set out in “Impairment of financial
assets” in note 3 and note 37.

BEAREHABHRGFHTHAR
ENEBRRIF(E

A TARERZEEREF(E)
ERABHEEEAES (E)
FEEHEREEE)
HEREAF-RBRIEEAESR
BEZZHBREHEEER AEH
REAEEBEEEBRERETT
i WEREBARERAFETERE -
ERaENEBARERAMARE
BFIR - (i) 8 403K (8 75 A S SR AT £t
WE RN BEARRRER - B
AR KA R A EI B AT
TRIA B3 e B R FUBA 2 K O AL 3
B o UpSh - B ERERS - AEER
BEHRTERFPAEHERRZA
FAE -

EREUNEERRLEREES
BzBEBERERGAVBHRRWE
37 °

BRI EERZIEERBEEEN
AR EESFTM AL - R B ES 4R R B TR
BERENMECREE  AFEHEED
REREEERRESCDREEM -
MBI EREEERRBEZEMN
T OREEEARAREPERALE
AEBRAUAEHMEREEFERE
HHE - MEERRBBEEM A2
AKERE=H(MIE2EAR)BHMEE
EEREBRRE BEMBHRSE

BIZE95% I K R E 1= B [E B 78 & 15 N
MREEA - FE—BEENEERRZ
RHEEZNR AEEZEEAENA

FNEMLREEMNER  BRBELK
BEEFNETGERASLLEHENA
RSHRELEER - RFGEERR
ERBEEINEKEE 2 E R RH
AR M EITZ [ MEE 2 HBE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Source of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment allowance for accounts receivable
from secured margin clients arising from the business

of dealing in securities and loans and advances (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 October 2018)

The Group periodically reviews its accounts receivable from
secured margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities and loans and advances to identify any balances
with objective evidence of impairment indicators and assess
whether impairment losses exist individually. When there is
objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group estimates
the future cash flows of assets for impairment testing purpose
by taking into account the value of the underlying collateral,
repayment records of borrowers, current creditworthiness
and other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Were the financial conditions
of the clients of the Group to deteriorate, resulting in the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, additional
impairment losses may arise in future financial periods.

Determination of consolidation scope of certain pledged
securities in money lending

The Group entered into secured loan arrangements with
customers that contains several covenants such that the Group
may have the voting rights on certain relevant activities of the
pledged company if a covenant is breached. When these
protective rights become exercisable, there is a change in facts
and circumstances and the control assessment is reassessed.

All facts and circumstances must be taken into consideration
in the assessment of whether these rights are substantive
and whether the Group, as lender, have practical ability to
exercise these rights as power to direct the relevant activities
of the pledged company. The principle of control sets out
the following three elements of control: (a) power over the
pledged company; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from involvement with the pledged company; and (c) the
ability to use power over the pledged company to affect the
amount of the lender’s returns.

In conducting the assessment to determine this consolidated
scope, the directors of the Company considers whether
the rights held by the Group are substantive and are there
any barriers (economic or otherwise) that prevent or deter
the Group from exercising its rights based on all facts and
circumstances.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

5.

Segment Information

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided.

According to HKFRS 8,

the Group has the following

operating and reportable segments:

(a) Financing

(b) Brokerage

(c) Placing and
underwriting

(d) Corporate finance

Provision of margin financing
and money lending services

Provision of securities, options,
futures, insurance, other asset
and wealth management
products broking services and
related handling services

Provision of placing and
underwriting services

Provision of corporate finance
advisory services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 30 September 2019

REVENUE Wt A

Segment revenue — external customers
DEBBA - HEBEF

Commission and fee income

MekEREA

Interest income F 8 U A

Inter-segment sales [ FE 85 & 305,391 -

Placing and

7 & E
ERADANTER(EBLERR
MNASEERRTESBRR2E
BTy 8 R BT IR B AR B 2 4B R -

RIBEBVHREENFESH K&
BMAENTEERATZH D B :

@ EX - REFRBERS
ER%

(b) ##x - REEES HE-
HE - R Eft
BELMEEEE
an < AE 4C B 5 K AR
FERG

) EEEAH - RUEEESHERS

(d) ERE - REHECXBEER
%

DEBAREE

ATRAEBZWAREEREER
AE®D B2z oM

B ZE2019F9830H L FE

Corporate

Financing Brokerage underwriting finance Elimination Total

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERx FTER

77,366

940,016 24,654

1,245,407 102,020

BEEREH

HK$’000
FTEx FER FERT FTERx

EERE 0 8% A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

34,453 118,184

- 964,670
(328,896) -

(328,896) 1,082,854

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
5. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2019 (continued)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Financing
BX

HK$’000
TEx

RESULTS #%#&

Segment results 7 3 % 4& (189,435)

Unallocated other operating income

R B E M E A

Unallocated corporate expenses
AOBEEXEER

— staff costs (including directors’ remuneration
but excluding staff commission expenses)

-BINA(BEREZRZME  BTBEEIR
® X )

— management fee to a related company
(note 32(a)(ii))
- T -BEEQR ZEEE (WiE32(a) i)

— service charge to related companies
(note 32(a)(ii))
- BT EERAZ R E (B 7F32(a)0i)

— others

- Hft

Share of loss of an associate
EiE—HEBE AR ZBE

Loss before taxation & i A /& 18

Taxation % 18
Loss for the year & [Z 518

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & #
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Brokerage

HK$’000

5. 7EER(E)
DEBAREE(E
B =2019F9A30B L FEE (&)
DESFEHE NIRBITH S ERKE -

Placing and
underwriting

i [TR==Rak

HK$°000
THET

Corporate
finance
TERE
HK$’000
FHET

Total
et

HK$’000

TET FTET

45,263 10,040 (138,097)

230

(53,142)

REX:PI))

(21,146)

(1,880)

(230,219)

(28,487)

(258,706)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

5.

Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 30 September 2018

Financing
£

HK$’000
TERx

REVENUE W A

Segment revenue — external customers

DERUWA - ShERER P

Brokerage
HK$’000
THER

DEBAREE(E
H ZE2018F9HA30HILFE

Placing and
underwriting
BERGH
HK$’000
FTHER

5. DEMERE)
i)

Corporate
finance
LEmME
HK$’000
THERT

Total
wEt
HK$°000
TER

Elimination
85
HK$°000
THET

Commission and fee income - 121,081 75,920 18,627 - 215,628
BekBABA

Interest income & B U A 1,085,879 12,763 - - - 1,098,642

Inter-segment sales % 5 [ $5 & 205,580 - 23,998 - (229,578) -

1,291,459 133,844 99,918 18,627 (229,578) 1,314,270

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEEENIRRITMEERKE -

RESULTS ##4&

Financing

g

HK$’000

TERT

Placing and

Brokerage underwriting
EEREH
HK$’000
TET

Corporate
finance
tERME
HK$’000
FHET

Total
et
HK$’000
FET

HK$’000
TERT

Segment results 7 & % 4& 664,794 64,391 37,796 3,820 770,801
Unallocated other operating income 11
R B H A A8 & A
Unallocated corporate expenses
RABEEERA
— staff costs (including directors’ remuneration

but excluding staff commission expenses) (70,467)
-BEIXABREESEZHE  EFBEEIR

©X )
— management fee to a related company

(note 32(a)(ii)) (301)
- T —BBEERR ZERE (WiE32(a) i)
— service charge to related companies

(note 32(a)(ii) (16,697)
-4 TRERF 2 RSB (A i232(a)(i)
— others (21,139)
- Hity
Share of loss of an associate (2,160)
EE—EEE AR 2 &8
Profit before taxation Bk %4 A1 i 7 660,048
Taxation % I8 (110,853)
Profit for the year F € i Fl| 549,195

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. EHER(E)
Segment revenue and results (continued) ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&)\&%%ﬁ( z)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the A 235 0« & 5T B B sE3hT i
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note ZKEI 2t IEER - D EEE
3. Segment results represents the profit earned by each EDEFEER ZmF c MRS EFR
segment without allocation of central administration costs THREREFBEESZM S P RT
(including directors’ remuneration and central administrative HABKA - HETHESZHERM -
staff costs but excluding staff commission expenses), *ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬂf@%%)\‘ MY — R E
unallocated other operating income, management fee to a NAIZERE KL THERAZRY
related company, service charge to related companies, and B N JE{h— A B 3%%*7372)%?5 o &
share of loss of an associate. This is the measure reported RARBHITESZRUEDEER
to the executive directors of the Company for the purpose DRI 2l  BEE2LEARK
of resources allocation and performance assessment. No AWIEEEBEREEERNUADEER
analysis of segment asset and segment liability is presented RAHRE  WEZVWSMBEERD
as the chief operating decision maker does not regularly BMBEZDH - At - EZ255EBUK
review such information for the purposes of resources ARDEBEL

allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, only
segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Other segment information Hfth 7 7B & ¥
For the year ended 30 September 2019 B £2019F9830R L F E

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance Total
B g (T kak | LXEmME # 5t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°’000 HK$°’000
TR TR FTEx FTEx FTEx

Additions of property and equipment 167 4,512 17 4,696
NEMERRB

Depreciation of property and equipment

MERKBZNE

Impairment allowances on accounts receivable,
net of reversal 511,918 511,918

FEM AR R 2 R BB - MR E

Impairment allowances on loans and advances,
net of reversal 377,366 377,366
ERLBRBERS  MEKEED

Interest income F| B U A 940,016 . 964,670

Finance costs 81 7% & 176,261 176,261

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

5. Segment Information (continued) 5. oWERE)
Other segment information (continued) Hittp HER (&
For the year ended 30 September 2018 B £2018F9A30HIFFE

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage underwriting finance Total
B K2 BREHEGSH bXEmME # 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEX FTHEX THET THET THET
Additions of property and equipment 3,068 1,073 - 5 4,146
NBEWERRE
Depreciation of property and equipment 594 1,277 - 1 1,872
MEREHEZNE
Impairment allowances on accounts receivable 203,416 - - - 203,416
JE W BR BR 2 R B BB
Impairment allowances on loans and advances,
net of reversal 2,162 - - - 2,162
ERRBRZBEERF  MBRED
Interest income F S A 1,085,879 12,763 - - 1,098,642
Finance costs 8115 & H 153,978 - - - 153,978
Geographical information it E & F

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of the
Group’s revenue from its external customers, based on the
country from which the trades are derived in relation to

ATHAREBRBEIBEL 2
AZHWEDN KB BIEREER
ZREBEAME  HERXH KR

brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and g RMER &L EEEBHER
based on the country in which the customers are located TEREVANE  NEREFHE
in relation to financing, brokerage, placing and underwriting ZER -

and corporate finance revenue.

Revenue
KA
2019

2018
HK$°000
TERT

HK$°000
TR

Hong Kong & i 1,075,106 1,299,234
United States 3 B 7,738 15,026
Others H4th 10 10

1,082,854 1,314,270

Information about major customer

For the years ended 30 September 2019 and 30 September
2018, there was no single customer who contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.

EHEIEEFZEHR

H Z 20194930 A ) 20184F9A30H
IFE - WEE-FFHROBAL
REBIANI10%K LA £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
6. Revenue 6.

2019
HK$°000
TR

Revenue (notes (i) and (vii)) Y& A (B 77 (i) % (vii))

Commission and fee income (note (ii)):

Be &k ERWAMZ0))

Commission and fees income on dealing in securities (note (iii))

BEERS2Me k&R AH i)

Commission and fees income on dealing in futures and options
contracts (note (iii))

EEHELEEAN ZME NERW A Z>)

Commission from insurance brokerage and wealth management
(note (iii) 6,295
R kY =88 2ME (B2 30i)

Corporate finance advisory services fee income (note (iv)) 6,365

CEBEBERREBWAMN Z V)

Placing and underwriting commission (note (v)) 34,453
feE kB EMEE M2 w)

118,184

Interest income: F B U A :

Interest income from margin and initial public offer financing (“IPO”)
(note (vi)) 541,606
HFREERABER(TERARBRDEE 2 BWA M Vi)

Interest income from loans and advances (note (vi)) 398,410
BERRBH 2 BW A T WD)

Interest income from bank deposits (note (jii) 24,476
AT R 2 F B WA B 72 (i)
Others (note (iii)) E1th (47 2% (iii)) 178
964,670

1,082,854

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & #

2018
HK$’000
87

93,745

19177

8,159

18,627

75,920

215,628

799,440

286,439

12,684

79

1,098,642

1,314,270




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
Revenue (continued)

6.

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

To better reflect the major revenue sources of the Group and its
proportion to the total revenue, the Group has decided to present
revenue items into two major categories: “Commission and fee
income” and “Interest income” for the purpose of preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2019. Accordingly, comparative information has been
re-arranged to conform to the current year’s presentation.

The commission and fee income is the only revenue arising under
the scope of HKFRS 15, while interest income is under the scope
of HKFRS 9.

Included in revenue, revenue arising from contract with customers
recognised at a point in time and over time were HK$111,819,000
and HK$6,365,000, respectively.

All services provided to customers are for periods of one year
or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Amounts are reported under brokerage segment as set out in
note 5.

Amounts are reported under corporate finance segment set out
in note 5.

Amounts are reported under placing and underwriting segment
set out in note 5.

Amounts are reported under financing segment set out in note
5.

Except for the amounts of commission and fee income on dealing
in futures and options contracts of HK$7,738,000 and HK$6,000
(2018: commission and fee income on dealing in futures and
options contracts of HK$15,026,000 and HK$5,000) which are
incurred from United States products trading and other overseas
products trading respectively, and interest income from bank
deposits of HK$4,000 (2018: interest income from bank deposits
of HK$5,000) which are under other overseas locations, all
other revenues from external customers are under Hong Kong
operation as set out in note 5.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 3 2 &

WA (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EEHRMAEEFTZRARERR
HR @R ARG SLREES
2019F9A30R L FEHRE M B HE
mE  AEBERTEERAEEBZME
FEHEF2Y: [HekBHKAIM
[FIBWAl - Bt BEAERFEZ
2% hBRERNEIEETLH -

BeRERRARBEEYBREE
RIE165R E A BV M — IR A - T A B K
ABREBUBRE LR TR
#E o

WABREREBRBEER -—RE
MEERZEPANHDERAD A
111,819,000/% 7T 526,365,000/ 7T °
R|BEPZIMARBHEBRR —FX
- REBBUBMELERE5R
ET&E*%M%%%*%&%%Z
RHEREAEE -

BEABATZ2RSEH NS -

PEMEDIMAT 2 2ME BE LW
5 e

REEBHIHBE T ZEMEREAR
MTDIS °©

MEDFIE T 2MS A POM TS -

FHEMRIMNEMEINERRHE
S rEEHELRBERAOZAS R
&R A £ %5 5 A7,738,000% T
16,0007 7T (20184F : & & #1 & & Hf
BEHZHERBRAKASES A
15,026,000 JT }.5,000% 7o) LA &2 H
B INMIE ZRITERZF B MK A
4,0007 7T (20184F  IR1TIF R 2 7 B
U A5,0005% 7T) B b - XEB@E/%%%
BN R PR ATA H U AT H R
B 5E5 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M B®KRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

7. Impairment Allowances, net of Reversal 7. BERE IRED

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

FER FERT

Impairment allowances on: J& (B # & :
Accounts receivable &4 Bk 5k 521,768 203,416
Loans and advances B 3 & 8% 379,594 2196

Reversal of impairment allowances on: & & # & # @ :

Accounts receivable & U iR 5K (9,850) -

Loans and advances E X & # 3k (2,228) (34)

889,284 205,578
8. Staff Costs 8. BEIMXK

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$°000

THER THERT

Staff costs represent the amounts paid and payable

to the directors and employees and comprise:

BEIRAHECNEENTEERREEZSHE B

Salaries, bonus and allowances ¥4 - fE 4T K& E 8, 118,173
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme iE & 18 Fll 5T 21 {ft & 3,469
121,642

9. Finance Costs 9. BMKEH
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest on: NFIIEE ZF & :
Bank overdrafts and loans $817#& X R E X 10,553 31,176
Bonds issued B E1TE & 165,688 122,783

Others H At 20 19
176,261 153,978

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERESTHAEZHM &£

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2018: 7) Bt sk fE A F76L(20184F : 7h1) B =
directors and the chief executive were as follows: EESTBRABZMESH0T
For the year ended 30 September 2019 B £2019F9H30R L F &

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors

BOTES BUFHTES

Choi
Daisy Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Yeung Shek Wah Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total

B RaGE R BR f Hf REE BI-E BE¥E @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THERT TERT THERT THER TERT THERT TERT
(Notes (b), (d)) (Notes (b), (€))  (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))
) (d)) b) - () ) b)) ) ) )

Fees ¥ & 250
Other remuneration {2 B 4

Salaries and allowances
HekEM

Discretionary bonus (Note (a))

WIS 52 (a)

Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme
RAKAE R 5 &4 5%

Total remuneration

[ikAE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEBA5EBEHR LT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERBSTHRAEZEHE
(continued) (42
For the year ended 30 September 2018 B £2018F9H30H IEFE

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

YTES BUFHTES
Choi
Daisy Chan Suk Hing, Pearl Chu Poon Wan
Yeung Shek Wah Louisa Chan Kar Wing Yan Wai Choi Ha Total
B W= R R ol & AER BLE B¥E Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
(Notes (b), (d)) (Note (b)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c))
i) - (@) b) (K b) ) #(c)) 2(c) it (c)
Fees # & 200 200 200 200 235 235 235 1,505
Other remuneration E {5 B &
Salaries and allowances 2,133 4,656 2,466 2,117 - - - 11,372
ek
Discretionary bonus (Note (a)) 8,000 8,000 1,728 1,408 - - - 19,136
BB LA (f £ (a)
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme 17 36 173 176 - - - 402
RAKAE R 5 &4 5%
Total remuneration 10,350 12,892 4,567 3,901 235 235 235 32,415
At
Notes: B i -

120

(@)

Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

HBERADRTFASRERLEEE @
AKRBETSRATA L RETME -

(b)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (b)y ERAVHTEFSHNHESABSERN
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the RAREMBAREREERERS
Company and its subsidiaries. There was no arrangement under BB - RAFERN - EFHUEIRE
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ] % B B3R ok [A] = B3R <B BRAE {] B
during the year. ® o

(c)  The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for (c) LERAFEBRTEENMNESHIARS
their services as directors of the Company andjor its subsidiaries. EEARAR /SHEWNBRREEDN
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or W - RAFERN - EEHMERIEE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. o] Z2 B A 3 3k (A B R ZE <R HRAE {a] B

(d) Ms. Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company (d) BRFILEITRERFESITHRAE
and her emoluments disclosed above include those for services UERERMBECMNERERIEASR
rendered by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has been BITBA B AT 2 BR 7% i % 15 2 B
made as it is impracticable to apportion this amount among her T BREEREMART REWE
services to the Company and its subsidiaries. NEREREAAEM S ETIRLD D

B M EAEL R S o
()  Mr. Chan Shek Wah resigned as executive director on 31 August (e) PR % L4 N2019F8A31H B T ¥
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

11.

Employees’ Remuneration 1. EEME

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REE2019F9A30HIEFE * A&EHE
Group included three (2018: four) directors of the Company ZHhEZABESFMATEREARG =4
for the year ended 30 September 2019, details of whose (2018F - ME)EF - REZMEF
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. BREXHFI0HE - RAFE - H
The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: one) individual BRI (2018F : —B)A T 2B &
for the year were as follows: T~

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FERT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind F % - 85 & B YW 1E F 1,871
Bonus F& 4T 5,366 3,694

Contributions to retirement benefits scheme B K 18 F 5T &1 £t 3% 119 23

7,356 4,002

The remunerations were within the following bands: B & > F 1 %1 &6 & -

Number of employees
EEAR
2019 2018

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001,% JT £3,500,000/% 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,000/% 7T

HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001/ 7t £7,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group RAFE AKETEINME TF
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals MEFSITEERTMALT  ERE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as EMAREE S I ARE F 2 2 E
compensation for loss of office. SIERBRERER 2 m/E -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
12. (Loss) Profit Before Taxation 12. R AT(ESB) =T

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

FER FERT

(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Bk 75 A (&5 18) i A 2 HIBR

Included in other expenses: &2 R Efth X -

Auditor's remuneration % &l Bl & 2,200
Depreciation of property and equipment ¥ % K &% & 2 T & 1,872
Net exchange loss [ % /& 18 /% %8 51
Operating lease rentals in respect of N5 &H 2 &L HHHE
- rented premises — TH & ¥ ¥ 16,453
- equipment — & 15 11,916

13. Taxation 13. i1\
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Current year: N4 & :

Hong Kong Profits Tax & /& #1113 110,931
PRC Enterprise Income Tax # B 1> % A5 1 52
Canada Income Tax 12 KFT1§H -
Overprovision in prior year: i& £ & /Z 858 & &
Hong Kong & /& (130)
Deferred tax: i& % i 78 :
Current year N & (2,941) -
28,487 110,853
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the R EFE - FEMGSE TR
estimated assessable profits for both years. SRR AIL16.5% 2 T REHE
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BEPBECEREHE(TEEMEN
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, EDNREEREBREAE WIS - PE

the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. WEBRAR ZMEE25% °

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

13. Taxation (continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation [ % B (/& 18) 3% FI

. RIE(E)

H b R AR 2 BERA BT AR
ZRITRREE -
AEEREBEREABNEEBEE
M 25 7 BB BT (5 98) 5 ) S BE 10
T

2019 2018
HK$’000

HK$’000
FERT FERT

(230,219)

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)
1216.5% (2018%4F : 16.5%) 2 FT 15 T T X5t H 2 B 18

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose

ABBEME TN L 2R BT E

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

AREMEBARBMBRAZR G E

Overprovision in respect of prior years

BEFEBRBREG

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised

RBEREHERZHIBEER

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

AEERBREABB NG T E

Tax effect of share of loss of an associate

DIE—RHBERRBRZBRBEE

Others H 4t

Taxation charge for the year

REERIARX

(37,986) 108,908
171 905
(4,464) (2,040)
(34) (130)
(51)

3,379

356

(1,612) (474)
28,487 110,853

As at 30 September 2019, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$563,068,000 (2018:
HK$124,206,000) available for offset against future profits
of the respective companies in which the losses arose. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely
with no expiry date but subject to the approval of the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department.

20199308 + A% E Al A 1E1K 8
EEBEEBRZABEARZ R EFZ
KRB L AT HIE E5 18 40 £563,068,000
7 7T (20184F : 124,206,000 7T) ° H
A AR A i R 2 AT FEOR - I £ Bk X
EHREEEBRRAELCHEBEE - R F
FA 2 T8 5 18 30 £ = m B HA i AT 4R IR
Hirted  WASEERERIL AR -
FIREE -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

14.

15.

Dividends 14. B &

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

FER FERT

Recognised as distribution: ## 58 1 7 K :

Interim dividend paid: Nil (2018: HK$0.0221 per share) 148,973
B FERE : T (20184 : §/%0.02217% 7T)
Final dividend paid in respect of 2018: HK$0.0064 per share
(2018: HK$0.0152 per share in respect of 2017) 102,461
#2018 F Eff 2 REIR B - §HX0.006478 7T
(2018%F : £20174 B iR Ik £70.01527% 7T)
251,434
The Directors did not recommend any payment of a final EETEAEMREE2019F9A30H 1
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2019 (2018: FRIRNRER S (20184 : Ti%0.64
HKO0.64 cent, approximately HK$43,141,000 in aggregate). Bl - A 4 543,141,000%8 7T) ©
(Loss) Earnings Per Share 15. BR(EH)EF
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share AARBEBEARBGEERER(EE)R
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the FMIREBE T EIRFE -

following data:

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FERT

(Loss) earnings (& #8) & 7|

(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share (258,706) 549,195
AREAEERER(ER)BNZ(EE)RT

Number of shares R0 & B

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

the purposes of basic (loss) earnings per share 6,740,846 6,740,846
ARAESRER(ER) BN ZE B MNE T
Basic (loss) earnings per share ERE & (EF#E)EA HK(3.84) cents HK8.15 cents
(3.84) 7% il 8.157 11l
No diluted (loss) earnings per share for the years ended 30 R A QR E#H £2019F9H30H &
September 2019 and 30 September 2018 were presented as 2018F9H30H L FEH E|EM B L
there were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during MARTTEERARKR AT E2Y|ZE
the years. FREZ2BRE S (BHE)RFT -

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

16. Property and Equipment 16. MERZE
Furniture Computer
Leasehold £ Office and other Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicle Total
BElR
MEEE RAREE HitiR e AE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER ; THET TR TER
COST H &
At 1 October 2017 #2017 10A1H 14,633 2,144 6,518 15,512 673 39,480
Additions /& E 200 - 48 3,898 - 4,146
Disposals & - - - (34) - (34)
At 30 September 2018 14,833 2,144 6,566 19,376 673 43,592
20184 9A30H
Additions 7 E 990 36 43 3,627 - 4,696
Disposals & - - - (49) - (49)
At 30 September 2019 15,823 2,180 6,609 22,954 673 48,239
12019594308
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
ZAHE
At 1 October 2017 72201710A1H 11,902 1,901 6,340 13,826 393 34,362
Provided for the year F E & & 828 79 204 606 135 1,872
Eliminated on disposals ! & ¥ i $4 - - - (29) - (29)
At 30 September 2018 12,730 1,980 6,564 14,403 528 36,205
2018491301
Provided for the year & F E # & 829 64 45 1,699 135 2772
Eliminated on disposals ! & ¥ i $4 - - - (44) - (44)
At 30 September 2019 13,559 2,044 6,609 16,058 663 38,933
742019595308

CARRYING VALUES BT &

At 30 September 2019 2,264 136 - 6,896 10 9,306
R2019F9730A
At 30 September 2018 2,103 164 2 4,973 145 7,387
1201897301
All the above items of property and equipment are FrEL o MERZEEEHNER
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% per ER20% CFERTUANE - EMER
annum, except that leasehold improvements are depreciated BRABISFUIREERE) T
over the shorter of the lease terms or 5 years. e -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

17. Intangible Assets 17. B EE
HK$°000
TERT
COST B &
At 1 October 2017, 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2019 9,802

72017910418 ~ 2018F9H30H & 2019F9H30H

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
B RRE

At 1 October 2017, 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2019 9,802
7R201710A418 ~ 2018 9H30H & 20194 9H30H

CARRYING VALUES RE &

At 30 September 2019 720194 9A30H -
At 30 September 2018 720184F9830H -

Trading rights were fully amortised over 10 years from the RS HEB2000F B R FT ~ BB MR
effective date of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the REBRREEBRAG ZEFER
Hong Kong Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities HERRE 10 T AR B 8 o
Clearing Company Limited to year 2000.

18. Interest in an Associate 18. R—REHE AR 2=

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT FER

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate

RIFELTBERB ZREKAR

Share of post-acquisition (loss) profit and other
comprehensive (expense) income

FEAE W B 1R (B 18) | M) N Bt 2 (5 32) W 2%

Amount due from an associate (Note 1) 5,987 5,987
JE W — ) Bk &8 R B SR IB (B 7F 1)

Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost of investment (2,552) (672)

BoENEEEBEBREKA

3,435 5,315

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

18. Interest in an Associate (continued)

18. A—REBE AT 2ER (&)

As at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2019, the R2018F9H30H KX 2019F9H30H -

Group had interest in the following associate:

Form of
business Place of
Name of entity structure incorporation

ERAHE EBEBE EMRIEH

Boom High Investment Incorporated BVI
Limited (“Boom High”) FEAB K Sz RERUES

REREERRAR(RK])

The Group’s share of loss

AEBEEER

NEBMA T EL N HEAREDS:

Proportion of nominal
Class of value of issued capital
share held held by the Group Principal activity

AEEFBAECRT
mEkoRE BRAH B 2 e fil TEXH

2019 2018
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(Hiit2) (Htat2)

Ordinary shares 28% 28%  Trading in securities

LR and investment in
funds

BHEERAGRA

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Fi#

(1,880)

The Group’s share of total comprehensive expense
AEBRGEEEMX AR

(1,880) (2,160)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the associate

AEERBE AR ED 2 REAE

Notes: B &t

(1)  The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest (1) ER-—MEBEQAFZELEERE . ¢
bearing and repayable on demand. BERIZERKEE -

(2)  The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Boom (2 HBRAEERESX B REERSE
High because it has more than 20% voting rights in its financial PHEAEBIB20% ZIEERE  WAKHE

and operating policy decisions.

19. Other Assets

AEREKTEEAZES -

19. HE=E
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fis FHx

Statutory and other deposits /& & & E fth 1% & 8,871
Statutory and other deposits represent deposits with various EEREMBSEFRIEARZR
exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest EEFZEE - ZEHREARRE -
bearing.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

20. Loans and Advances 20. EREBR

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

FER FERT

Fixed-rate loans receivable f& U & E F & E 3 3,269,090 2,524,430
Variable-rate loans receivable JE U % 8 & & 218,636 19,150

3,487,726 2,543,580
Less: Impairment allowances & : J&l {& # & (416,184) (33,634)

3,071,542 2,509,946

Analysed as: DT 5 :

Current 7t 8 &8 5 2,615,785 2,230,649
Non-current 3E 7 8 &8 5 419,757 279,297
3,071,542 2,509,946
The carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable- AEBEZEKEEMNERZEBERK
rate loans receivable together with their remaining contractual ZEEEERFSREOINHBRZI N
maturity dates are as follows: N

2019
HK$°000
FTERT

Fixed-rate loans receivable: J& & @ 5 F &=

Within one year — & & 2,507,222
In more than one year but no more than five years 78,822
—FREAFA

Over five years L& & 131,540

2,717,584
Past due & # 8§ 135,322

2,852,906

Variable-rate loans receivable: FEUW ¥ 8 B 3 :
Within one year — & A

In more than one year but no more than five years

—FRERFA

Over five years A 1% 176,463

218,636

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

20. Loans and Advances (continued) 20. ERRBRE)

=

2018

HK$°000
TERT

Fixed-rate loans receivable: f&E U & E F R &5 :

Within one year —F A 2,034,038

In more than one year but no more than five years 90,384
—FERERFR

Over five years A& & 180,267

2,304,689

Past due but not impaired = # Hi1E K & 186,107

2,490,796

Variable-rate loans receivable: FEU /% 8 & :

Within one year —F A 10,504
In more than one year but no more than five years 1,875
—FBRERFA
Over five years A4 & 6,771
19,150
Note: As at 30 September 2018, included in the fixed-rate loans KtiF: H2018F9H30R @ fE U E & F =
receivable were balances of approximately HK$186,107,000 B E & A 4186,107,000/8 JT 45 £
which had been past due but not impaired. Taking into account KEBBENMERE  BEREERK
the creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral value and AZEEE B REEKAE
executable subsequent settlement arrangements, the executive HEREETHE ARAMTESR
directors of the Company considered that no allowance for % FR2018F9A30H & F EH R
impairment was necessary as at 30 September 2018. BEEE -
Details of movements in provision for impairment of loans EREBFBEREBES ZFIFHN
and advances are set out in note 37. B 5E37 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

20. Loans and Advances (continued) 20. ERRBR(E)

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable
are as follows:

Effective interest rates:

BRRAI*:

Fixed-rate loans receivable

JiE W [E E F R E 3K £ H0.5% %3.83%

Variable-rate loans

receivable prime rate per annum
JEHY BRER SEREBENR2I5%EEFRER

S
As at 30 September 2019, 156 (2018: 119) secured
loans with the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,157,508,000 (2018: HK$785,358,000) were secured
by first legal charges in respect of respective properties
located in Hong Kong. The collateral for each individual
loan is sufficient to cover the loan amount on an individual
basis. They were advanced to various independent
borrowers and will be due for repayment within 1 to 30 years
(2018: 1 to 30 years). The remaining balance of the loans
receivable amounting to approximately HK$1,914,034,000
(2018: HK$1,724,588,000) were provided to independent
third parties of the Group, of which the loan amount of
approximately HK$948,774,000 (2018: HK$886,388,000)
were with second or third legal charges in respect of
properties located in Hong Kong and will be due for
repayment within 1 to 30 years (2018: 1 to 30 years) from
the respective loans’ date of advance.

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, each
of the fixed-rate and variable-rate secured loans receivable
represented less than 10% of the gross loans and advances
balance.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances
approximate their fair value.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 37.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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0.5% per month to 3.83% per month

Prime rate - 2.75% per annum to

AEERKERZERMNEDNT:

2018

0.19% per month to 3.83% per month
F H0.19%£3.83%

Prime rate per annum to
prime rate + 1% per annum

BFEREENXEEFREEMER 1%

MR201949A30H » 1568 (20184 :
11918 ) 4858 #91,157,508,00078 7T (2018
F 1 785,358,000/ E)Zﬁ%fwﬁﬁfm
TIABBEMEZE—ETHLER
H o NIBIJff,’—'xmfﬁﬁuuiLMfﬁ%
BHEEREYE ZEEXRNBMATE
HEIERA WA R1Z=304F (2018
FAR0F)ANEHEERE - BIWER
£ %8 #91,914,034,0005 7T (20184 :
1,724,588,0008 L) WAL TAEE 2
B E =75 - A #9948,774,0007% T
(20184F : 886,388,000/ L) 2 B Ty
NEBWMEZE _KFE=LrTHLA
BR UHERBESEEERZR2MNA
HA #£ 5H1ZE304F (20184 : 1£2304F) N
FIHAEE -

M 2019F9A30H K& 201849H308 -
%IEH&IE%IJT&@uﬁmﬁﬂfm
HORERRBREHBEETE 210% °

AEE 2 HRRB
FERE

= BB R 3 L ST 2[4
R R AR

R REEREA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
21. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing in securities:

KERFEEEH ZBEIRR:

Clearing houses, dealers, brokers and cash clients
BER - RX5B KBERBEEER

Secured margin loans B &7 & B X

Accounts receivable from the business of dealing
in futures contracts:

REHEEHNEEFX B 2 BWERR:
Clearing houses and brokers # & AT & 48 42

Accounts receivable from the business of corporate finance

KEDFRBE RN EWIRR

21. FWERR

2019
HK$°000

2018
HK$°000

FERT FERT

Less: provision for impairment J& : J& & # &

68,686 98,292
4,003,638 5,499,963
85,133 131,819
715 575
4,158,172 5,730,649
(729,715) (206,416)
3,428,457 5,524,233

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from
the business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance are determined in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group seeks to maintain tight
control over its outstanding accounts receivable from the
business of corporate finance in order to minimise the credit
risk.

Details of credit risk profile disclosure are set out in “credit
risk and impairment assessment” in note 37.

As at 30 September 2019, accounts receivable from
foreign brokers denominated in Australian dollar,
Renminbi, Singapore dollar and United States dollar were
approximately HK$207,000 (2018: HK$232,000), HK$720,000
(2018: HK$722,000), HK$Nil (2018: HK$146,000) and
HK$55,200,000 (2018: HK$86,692,000) respectively.

EFEBEXBRELE ZRRERAE
BERARERNERAABRAIRE
RN 2 BEHR AR ZHBERME
MM EANEBEXHMES 2 RIK
RAZBEHRA/XFHBEK—HB -

KECEBEXB ZBPERHNIEE
BERDREBANGRETE - SMEE
EERRE NEBEKEHERKRER
KEDERE R P RRRE &

BE o

FERRBREEH DN F72(1E
BRE B MR ERTE] -

MR2019F9A30H » JE UK 18 4 &8 42 BR
HABIT - AR« Frms T K=
TEHE - DRI 4 A207,000% 7T (2018
£ 1 232,000 7T) ~ 720,0005 7T (2018
& 722,000 7T) © & 7B 0 (20184 ¢
146,0003% 7T) K 55,200,000 7T (2018
£ © 86,692,000/ 1) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

21. Accounts Receivable (continued)

As at 30 September 2019 and 30 September 2018, no
individual account represented more than 10% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and IPO margin
loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts
receivable (before impairment) are as follows:

Past due: % Hf :
0 — 30 days 0 — 30H
31 — 60 days 31 — 60H
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H

Over 90 days B #®90H

21. EWWERR (&

M201949830H KX 20185%9730H -
BMEMERRBEMEWRERREG BT
10% LA | o

ARABHTESERR AXHHEER
% RS2 MMEBEETIK 8
BERERFERFRERNERARE
RAFRERZRER DT o

R EUBR R 2 BRiEe D T CRUE AT 1A
T

2019
HK$°000

FER

Accounts receivable which were past due

B8 H 2 B AR K

Accounts receivable which were not past due

&8 H 2 AR AR

153,627

154,534

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
21. Accounts Receivable (continued)

Past due: #i 8 :

21. EWERER(E)
2018
HK$’000

FERT

0 — 30 days 0 — 30H 403
31 — 60 days 31 — 60H 105
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H 309
Over 90 days #B#®90H 285
Accounts receivable which were past due but not impaired 1,102

B BB S E R (E 2 B W BR R
Accounts receivable which were neither past due nor impaired 229,584

B8 BT T ERUE 2 FE W BR TR
230,686
22. Pledged Bank Deposits — General Accounts 22. BEHRITER - —RERF

Pledged bank deposits & # 1 48 1717 &

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

FER FERT

160,000 160,000

The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2018: HK$160,000,000)
with a bank were to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group to the extent of HK$530,000,000 (2018:
HK$530,000,000), of which HK$150,000,000 was utilised
as at 30 September 2019 (2018: HK$NIil). The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the expiry of banking
facilities.

$8 17 77 7 160,000,0003% 7T (2018 4F :
160,000,000/ 7T) B 1E & 7~ & E E %
$8 17§ & 5% %530,000,0005% 7T (2018
4 : 530,000,000/ ) 2 I - H b
150,000,000 7T E 7201949 A30H
EHACROSF THE L) - 2EE K
BIRTHEREREBRITREE MR
E R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMERRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
23. Bank Balances and Cash

23. IRITEBRRES

Bank balances iR 174 #
— segregated accounts (Note)

- B RP (M)

— general accounts and cash

-—REFPERE

2019 2018
HK$°000

HK$’000
TR TERT

1,416,696 1,642,300
1,745,508 883,041
3,162,204 2,525,341

Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated
activities. These clients’ money are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial
rates. The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to respective clients and other institutions. However,
the Group currently does not have an enforceable right to offset
those payables with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2019, bank balances and cash
denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Japanese
Yen, United States dollar, Renminbi and Singapore dollar, are
approximately HK$80,000 (2018: HK$90,000), HK$47,000
(2018: HK$2,065,000), HK$10,000 (2018: HK$10,000),
HK$270,224,000 (2018: HK$261,942,000), HK$47,486,000
(2018: HK$27,249,000) and HK$2,778,000 (2018:
HK$2,417,000) respectively.

The general accounts and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial
rates with original maturity of three months or less.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & #

it HEETXREZRBRED F£H
WERERAEEPREMEBEBERZ
A REREPFRFER [k
ZEBILRITIRP A R AR R %
HECAEBEEHABRNTAEE
PR EAMEEZEEERR - AW
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ot~ BE - ET - ARBRFINE A
B2 RIT4HE#% KIR € 5 54 580,000
7 7T (20184F : 90,0007 JT) * 47,0008
7t (20184F : 2,065,0005% 7T) * 10,0007
7T (20184F : 10,0007 7T) * 270,224,000
# 7T (20184F : 261,942,000/ 7T)
47,486,000/ 7T, (20184F : 27,249,000/ 7T
K2,778,0005 7T (20184F : 2,417,000/
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

24. Accounts Payable 24, BB

REBHFEBEB 2 ENER:
4k

Clearing houses and brokers # & BT & & 42

Margin and cash clients ff& k3R & &P

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in futures contracts:

KEMEAHWEBEXH ZRNER:

Margin clients B & F

Accounts payable from the business of dealing in securities:

2019 2018
HK$°000

HK$°000

FERT FERT

8,189 802
1,390,735 1,591,776
165,368 243,056
1,564,292 1,835,634

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for margin
clients, arising from the business of dealing in securities
are two days after trade date and accounts payable arising
from the business of dealing in futures contracts are one
day after trade date. No ageing analysis is disclosed as in
the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of this business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities bear variable interest at
commercial rates, and are repayable on demand subsequent
to settlement date.

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HK$1,416,696,000 and HK$1,642,300,000 as at 30
September 2019 and 30 September 2018 respectively were
payable to clients and other institutions in respect of the
segregated bank balances received and held for clients and
other institutions in the course of conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group currently does not have an
enforceable right to offset these accounts payable with the
deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2019, accounts payable denominated
in Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar,
Singapore dollar and Renminbi were approximately
HK$74,000 (2018: HK$84,000), HK$11,000 (2018:
HK$10,000), HK$227,800,000 (2018: HK$261,401,000),
HK$45,000 (2018: HK$Nil) and HK$23,168,000 (2018:
HK$19,012,000) respectively.

Emperor Capital Group Limited 3 2 &
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

25. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income/Available-for-sale
Investment

The Group holds 15% equity interest in Emperor Investment
Fund Limited (“EIFL"). EIFL had no business operations and
had net liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 2019.

In the opinion of the executive directors of the Company,
the equity interests held by the Group in EIFL are with a
primary objective for capital appreciation and recognised as
financial asset at FVTOCI, which was previously classified
as available-for-sale investment (note (2)).

The executive directors of the Company consider the fair
value of the EIFL as at 30 September 2018 and 2019 are
approximated to zero with reference to the net liabilities of
EIFL.

26. Short-term Bank Borrowings

As at 30 September 2018, included in the short-term bank
borrowings of HK$460,225,000 were bank borrowings of
HK$300,000,000 which were secured by charges over
client securities with market value of HK$1,113,000,000. No
short-term bank borrowings were secured by charges over
client securities during the current year. As at 30 September
2019, short-term bank borrowings of HK$150,000,000 (2018:
HK$NIl) were secured by bank deposits of the Group (note
22). The remaining balance represented unsecured bank
borrowings. All of these bank borrowings carried interest with
a range of HIBOR+1.3% p.a. to HIBOR+2.3% p.a. (2018:
HIBOR+1.3% p.a. to HIBOR+2.3% p.a.).

ANATHIREE 2 EafER 2 REE:

Within one year — & A

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable:

25.

26.

ERHMEEWSEEAFETD
ReeRMEEAHEERE

AEEKREREREEZTBER AT
([REREESND15%KE - ZER
B & % 12018 N 2019F9H30R I
BEXGEERRGRAGBFER -

ARFATEERR AKERRE
BREESHBAZCBREIBEANRS
KEAE ITHRIASBEBEMEE
Wanig A EIIR 2 2B EE KA D
BRAHEEREHEQ) -

ARBRITEZTRE RERERE
Ao vBEFE REXKEHEESR
20184 N 20199830 2 A F E &

HHRITER

R2018F9A30H » M H R 1718 &
460,225,000/%8 7T F B & iF 17 & X
300,000,000/ 7t * FA T {&1,113,000,000
BLIZEFPBLHBEEE®R - KXFE
MEREIETESRAERESMCE
A o FR2019F9A30R » 2 Hi$R 17
& 150,000,000 7T (20184 : T &
JC) B AEE 2 IR 177 R EE R (Y 5
22) o RN RREIE M IBIRITIBE N ©
FIBEZERTERNERENTES
SBITRIZEFREINMII%ERBRITRIE
R M2.3% 2 (20184 : HH R 17T
BERBIII%EEBBITREIRE
n2.3% 2 M) °

2019
HK$’000

2018
HK$°000

FERT FER

The carrying amounts of bank loans that contain a repayment on

demand clause (shown under current liabilities) but repayable:

HAARZRERGREANRATHHEHEE 2RITER
GIANRBAE) 2 REE:

Within one year — & A

Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities

AR —FRERIIARBDABZ

231,173 460,225
231,173 460,225
231,173 460,225

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
27. Bonds Issued

27. BRITES

Current i &)

Corporate bonds — Placing Arlf&E % — Bl &

2019 2018
HK$°000

HK$°000

FERT FERT

626,904 969,859

Non-current 3F 7 &

Corporate bonds — Placing A Flf& % - Bt &

2,186,640

1,815,181

During the year ended 30 September 2018, the Company
has issued (i) four tranches of the corporate bonds under the
placing agreement dated 16 January 2018 for bonds issuing
with an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$800 million
(the “3rd Placing Agreement”) and (ii) four tranches of the
corporate bonds under the placing agreement dated 11 April
2018 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$400 million (the “4th Placing Agreement”) in
principal amount totalling approximately HK$1,190.5 million
and US$1.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.4
million).

During the current year, the Company has issued (i)
five tranches of the corporate bonds under the placing
agreement dated 5 November 2018 for bonds issuing with
an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$500 million
(the “5th Placing Agreement”) and (ii) four tranches of the
corporate bonds under the placing agreement dated 12 April
2019 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal amount
of up to HK$500 million (the “6th Placing Agreement”) in
principal amount totalling approximately HK$1,000 million.

As at 30 September 2019, the current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balance of approximately HK$626.9 million
(2018: HK$969.9 million) represented four (2018: eight)
tranches of the corporate bonds issued under the placing
agreement dated 15 March 2016 for bonds issuing with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$1,200 million (the
“1st Placing Agreement”), and one tranche of corporate
bond under the placing agreement dated 14 November
2016 of bond issuing with an aggregate principal amount of
up to HK$400 million (“2nd Placing Agreement”), including
an aggregate principal amount of Hong Kong Dollars
bonds of approximately HK$611.7 million (2018: HK$909.5
million) and an aggregate principal amount of U.S. Dollars
bonds of US$2.1 million (2018: US$8 million) (equivalent to
approximately HK$16.3 million (2018: HK$62.0 million)).

R E E2018F9A30B IEFEE - AR
A E ()R & B #) B2018F 18168 2
REHZE(E=—RERRDRETITR
& % A H & % A800,000,000/8 T &
HFEBRTIUALRRE S R(i)RE B
AB2018F481MB 2 & W& ([F Y
REmZRETLASBEERZA
400,000,000/ JT (& % 8 1T W #t A A
EF @ A& B4 H£441190,500,000
B JT &1,200,0003% T(HH & B 4
9,400,000 7T) °

RARFE  ARFEOREBH A
2018 F1MASA 2 e & e ([5 A B
EmZ)REBETLAEBEAEEEZA
500,000,000/ JT{& %5 8 1T At A A
&% R(NBEBEH 2201944 512R
Z2EEHZE(BENREHmE) BT
A& EEA H£ 5% 45500,000,0008 TE
FETHUMARES  AeBEHY
/%1,000,000,0007% 7T °

2019F9H30H - R BB A AIE S
45 2 M B EB 9 2 #9626,900,00078
7T (20184F : 969,900,000/ 7T) 5 1R 1
BHEI A2016E3A15B 2B &tz ([
—REHZEDRBTLACBEEERS
#£1,200,000,000/8 L& % 2172 Wit
(20184 : \#it) ARIES - MR HE
A2016FMA4B 2R EHE(E =
REmZRETLASBEERZA
400,000,000 TEH T2 — 1A A
E% (BIEAE EE#611,700,000/8 7T
(20184F : 909,500,000 7T) 2 7 T &
# KR4 48 %2 100,000 7T, (2018 4F -
8,000,000 7t) (18 & 7 £716,300,000
7 7T (20184F : 62,000,000/ 7)) 2 ==
TLiESH °
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As at 30 September 2019, the non-current portion of
outstanding corporate bonds balances of approximately
HK$2,186.6 million (2018: HK$1,815.2 million) represented
(iy the two (2018: two) tranches of the corporate bonds
issued under the 1st Placing Agreement, (i) a corporate
bond issued under the 2nd Placing Agreement, (iii) the
four tranches of the corporate bonds issued under the
3rd Placing Agreement and (iv) the four tranches of the
corporate bonds issued under the 4th Placing Agreement,
(v) five tranches of the corporate bonds issued under the 5th
Placing Agreement, and (vi) four tranches of the corporate
bonds issued under the 6th Placing Agreement, including
an aggregate principal amount of Hong Kong Dollars bonds
of approximately HK$2,190.5 million (2018: 1,802.2 million)
and an aggregate principal amount of U.S. Dollars bonds
of US$1.2 million (2018: US$3.3 million) (equivalent to
approximately HK$9.4 million (2018: HK$25.6 million)).

Except for the bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and
U.S. Dollars issued under the 1st Placing Agreement, 5th
Placing Agreement and 6th Placing Agreement, which carry
a fixed annual interest rate of 5.25% and 4.5% respectively,
the remaining bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
and U.S. Dollars issued carry a fixed annual interest rate
of 5% and 4.75% respectively. All the above bonds are
with a maturity period of 3 years from the issue date, and
the interest will be paid annually in arrears with the first
interest payment date on the first anniversary date after bond
issuance.

Pursuant to the bond instrument of bonds placing
abovementioned, the Group may, at any time, before the
maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving
not less than 10 business days written notice at 100% of
the principal amount of such bonds together with payment
of interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption.
The directors considered that such early redemption option
of the bonds was not separated from the bonds since the
economic characteristics and risks of such early redemption
option were closely related to the economic characteristics
and risks of the bonds. Subject to the conditions of the
bond instrument, the bondholder(s) shall not have the right
to request the Company to redeem the bonds prior to the
maturity date of the bonds.

Subsequent to the year end but before the reporting date,
the Company has not entered into any placing agreements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

27. Bonds Issued (continued) 27. ERTESR(E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

28. Share Capital 28. A&

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
BREECHEBTZEERHAE

2019 2018

Authorised: & 5E :

At beginning of year SOLFOLIOLIELON 500,000,000,000
F 1

At end of year SOLFOLOLIEGLON 500,000,000,000
F

Issued and fully paid:
BETRSRE:

At beginning of year 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724
F1

Issue of shares

BTN

At end of year 6,740,845,724 6,740,845,724
FR

Nominal value of
ordinary shares
EEREE
2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FHET

5,000,000 5,000,000

5,000,000 5,000,000

67,408

67,408

29. Share Options 29. B

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 January 2017 to approve the adoption of a share
option scheme of the Company which became effective on
27 January 2017 (*2017 Share Option Scheme”). During the
year, no share options were granted under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme.

A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is set out as
follows:

1.  Purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

2.  Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-

time or part time, including Non-executive Directors)
and such other eligible participants.

AAFREDR2017F1A26 B8R 2
AR ERBFRE BB BER
REBR WHERRARR —BERE
&I (E 201781 8278 4 &0)([2017
FHEBRETED RAFE  BER
PE20174F B8 IR 7 51 81 &% 0 E ) B B

2017 F RE IR HERT &l < EEE T T

2017 R ERTEI 2B W

EAKBRESWS| - BB N AE
BHZABRZEERAEE
RRERLERME N -

BEBAL

RERSEERERE(THE
BRE BREFATES)R
BHHEMBAERZEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
29. Share Options (continued)

3.

Emperor Capital Group Limited %2
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ %R

Shares available for issue under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme

(i)  Total number of shares: 674,084,572 shares as at
12 December 2019 (i.e. the date of this Annual
Report).

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares that it represents:
10% as at 12 December 2019.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme

(i) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the shareholders; and

(i)  options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the Board but in any event no
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

(i)  Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant;

(i)  Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

29.

30.

Share Options (continued)

9. The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option

Scheme:
Approximately 7 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

During the years ended 30 September 2018 and 2019,
no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or remained
outstanding under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and no
share-based payment expenses have been recognised in
both current and prior years.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on
or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length
of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme with maximum
cap at HK$1,500, of which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2019, no forfeited
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO
Scheme.

29.

30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

31. Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from 3. METHELENAEBENYEE

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s loans and TERAFRANEERETHELENERK
borrowings arising from financing activities, including both EREE PERSLEIFERE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing B o mERDELANEEREBRRS
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash MEFIEENRKRERELERSE
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement BHaomeRengxboEAERERE
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. FREREMNEE -

Bond

interest

Dividend payable

payable (included

(included in other
in other creditors) Short-term

creditors) EEH bank Bonds

EABRE FE(GFA borrowings issued

(GtAHfM HMtESd JHERT BT Total
BE 14 BR X)) R ™) B= &% #Et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTET FTET FTET FTET

At 1 October 2017 - 44,086 328,511 1,589,114 1,961,711
7201710 A 1H
Financing cash flows (251,434) (82,386) 131,714 1,188,602 986,496

MERTRE

Interest on bonds issued - 122,783 - - 122,783
ERITESZHE

Dividend declared 251,434 - - - 251,434
BEIRKE

Other changes H fth % - (2,725) - 7,324 4,599
At 30 September 2018 - 81,758 460,225 2,785,040 3,327,023
7201849 A30H

Financing cash flows (43,141) (127,297) (229,052) 19,062 (380,428)
mEReR=E

Interest on bonds issued - 165,688 - - 165,688
BRITESZHNE

Dividend declared 43141 - - - 43141
EEIkRE

Other changes X i & &) - (28,522) - 9,442 19,080
At 30 September 2019 - 91,627 231,173 2,813,544 3,174,504
R20199F9A30H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
142 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

32. Related Party Transactions 32. BEALRS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@ BRZZFVBHREEMIT DA
these financial statements, the Group had the following Rl RSN REBEEEEE A
significant transactions with related parties: THETTNINERRS:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000
THER FTERT

(i)  Corporate finance advisory services fee income from related
companies (notes 3 & 6) 2,120 2,320
MBEARIKBM CXREBRBEREERA N F3KE)

(i)~ Sharing of information system and administrative expenses paid

and payable to related companies (nofes 2 & 6) 15,922 16,697

RAOBEARGRITERREMENRENTRERRZER
(Htit2X%6)

Management fee to a related company (notes 2 & 6)
RY-—HBEERRICERE (K 72ke)

(i)  Operating lease rentals expenses to related companies
(notes 3 & 6) \
MBERAXNEEHRER S (W 73kK6)

(iv)  Commission and brokerage income from

[T 3R & R LB WA

301

11,847

- a related company (hotes 3 & 6) 55

- —HHEERR (M F3K6)

- directors of the Company (notes 1 & 3) 235

- KRR ZEFE(WF1RS)

(v)  Interest income from directors of the Company (notes 1 & 3)

AARRBESWERF B RA R Z1R3)

(vi)  Placing and underwriting commission expenses to a director of
the Company and associates (notes 1 & 3)

ARARB - ZEZRBEAINEERBERBE X H(HF1R3)

(vii) Printing, advertising and promotion expenses to related
companies (notes 2 & 6)

MBERRXNER  BENEEEM M Z2k6)

(viii) Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising from
business of dealing in securities by

REBHEBEBLRNARMAEEP ZENEK

1,485

270

2,790

— an associate (notes 2 & 4)
- —EEBE AT (M H2K4)

5,620

— directors of the Company (notes 1 & 2) 742

- KRR ZEF(HE1K2)

6,362

(ix) Rental and other deposits paid to related companies
(notes 5 & 6)
RBAEARI XA E R EMIE S (A F5Kk6)

4,133

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEBA5EBEHR LT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

32. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Emperor Capital Group Limited %2

Notes:

™

()

(4)

For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the relevant private discretionary trust set
up by Dr. Albert Yeung who is the deemed controlling
shareholder of the Company.

These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of
the Listing Rules.

These or some of these transactions are discloseable
continuing connected transactions (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company of
which details have been set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance and Connected Transactions” of the Directors’
Report. The directors confirmed that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The associate company of the Group is disclosed in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

This amount represents refundable rental deposits paid
for the continuing connected transactions as set out in
item 1 of the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and Connected
Transactions” of the Director’s Report.

The related companies are ultimately controlled by the
relevant private discretionary trusts of which Ms. Daisy
Yeung is also one of the eligible beneficiaries.

The compensation to directors and key management
personnel was disclosed in notes 10 and 11.

HEEEBRATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

33. Operating Lease Commitments 33. REHERIE
At the end of each of the reporting periods, the Group had REREHR AEBEREHRAY
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- ¥RERREZ T RELEHET
cancellable operating leases in respect of office premises BN HEHEERE ZEE KA
and hired equipment which fall due as follows: FEEN 2 BRI T

2019 2018

Rental Hired Rental
premises equipment premises equi

Hired
pment

NGRS HARE HENE HARE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FERT FERT FERT

FERT

Within one year — & A 9,112 2,362 13,860 1,589
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5,070 1,827 9,962 1,891
FEFAFBPREEEMFE)
14,182 4,189 23,822 3,480
For office premises and hired equipment, leases are mainly RMAMERBAZENS - BHE
negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two EREREIE MeEE - FH
years. MAERME -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

34. Summary Financial Information of the
Company

Non-current asset 3E 7 &) & &

Investment in a subsidiary R — BB RAR 2K E
Current assets 7t 8) & &

Amounts due from subsidiaries & W ] B A7) 2 3B

Subordinated loan due from a subsidiary

JEW—FREMB AR ZBEER
Other assets H i & &

Bank balances and cash R T4 82 KIR &

34. ARFMBERBE

2019
HK$’000
FERT

219,003

3,972,613

2,150,000

213

12,121

6,134,947

Current liabilities 7t & & &

Other creditors and accrued charges
H fth & BR 3K N JE 5T B

Tax liabilities %t 8 & &

Bonds issued D E1TE %

91,934

20,846

626,666

739,446

Net current assets i &) & & F &

5,395,501

Total assets less current liabilities

BERERRBAR

5,614,504

Non-current liabilities 3E7% &) & &

Bonds issued D E1TE %

2,171,288

Net assets & E FE

3,443,216

Capital and reserves & 728 & f# ##
Share capital &7

Reserves f&# &

67,408

3,375,808

Total equity (Note) 1 = 4258 (K1 7% )

3,443,216

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
146 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ #

2018
HK$°000
FER

219,003

3,874,195

2,150,000

196

17,301

6,041,692

81,640

6,076

953,479

1,041,195

5,000,497

5,219,500

1,815,181

3,404,319

67,408

3,336,911

3,404,319




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

34. Summary Financial Information of the
Company (continued)
Note:

Share
capital

@S

HK$’000
FTHER

At 1 October 2017 72017410818 67,408

4. AR MBERBE(E)

B & -

Share Special Retained
premium reserve profits Total
KR&wE RERE KRBT #at
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET FTHET THET

3,184,623 101,953 86,407 3,440,391

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year -
FEHEMNE2E W= B

- 215,362 215,362

Dividend recognised as distribution -
wRIED IR Z K E

- ~  (251,434)  (251,434)

At 30 September 2018 67,408
20184 9H30H

3,184,623 101,953 50,335 3,404,319

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year -
FREM KR 2HEY &R

- 82,038 82,038

Dividend recognised as distribution -

ERIEDIR 2B

- (43,141) (43,141)

At 30 September 2019 67,408
M201949H30H

3,184,623 101,953 89,232 3,443,216

Special reserve represents the difference between nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the
Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to
a group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

BRlEEREARRMBARBEITY
B 2 T E B AR D F R IR 200748 4
FoHZ SBEARKE —HHEA
AImETzROEER 2 =% -

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

35. Principal Subsidiaries 35. TEHE QA

148

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30
September 2018 and 2019 are as follows:

#

Name of subsidiary

il PNCEE

Place of

incorporation/

operation
EES L

Issued and fully
paid capital
BRTR
BEEX

20184 K 20199 H30H » AAR]+

EMBARZFHBNT:

Proportion of nominal value
of issued share capital
held by the Company
RRRBEZERT
FR A< T {8 o A
30.9.2019 30.9.2018

% %

Principal activities

FEXH

Emperor Asset Management Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 100  Provision of asset
Limited BE 7,000,0007 T management services
HEBEEBERRAA RUEAEEERS
Emperor Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100  Provision of corporate finance
HERMBEERAA ] 10,000,00078 7t advisory services
RECEBAEBEBRS
Emperor Capital (China) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100  Provision of promotion and
EEBFPEEBERAA B 100,000/ T marketing services in the
PRC
RPBERESERTISERE
PR %
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of money lending
EENBBERAR R 2B T services
REEFRE
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100 100  Provision of futures brokerage
HREHEARAR B 50,000,000 7T services
REHERLRS
Emperor Prestige Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100  Provision of money lending
HESHERERARAA B 1,000,000 7T services
REETRSG
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$900,000,000 100 100 Provision of securities
REFH(BB)AERRA B 900,000,0007 7T brokerage services and
margin financing services
RUEBFELRBER TR
BER®
Emperor Wealth Management Hong Kong HK$6,500,000 100 100  Provision of insurance and
Limited EE 6,500,000/ 7T other brokerage services
HEHEERERAA RER R R E M8 2 RS
HITERH#H(LB)BRARY  PRC HK$1,000,000 100 100  Business development
H 1,000,000 7T in the PRC
R BEETEBER
HEREXFAGLR)ERDEY  PRC HK$1,000,000 100 100 Business development
H 1,000,000 7T in the PRC
R BETEBER
HERBEZFACRINER QA PRC HK$500,000 100 100 Business development
i 500,000 7T in the PRC
RO BEETEBER

The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Emperor Capital Group Limited =&

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

35.

36.

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the executive directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group.

To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
short-term bank borrowings, bonds issued as disclosed in
respective notes, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves as
set out on the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and respective
notes. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the share
capital. In view of this, the Group manages its overall capital
structure through the drawdown and repayment of bank
borrowings, payment of dividends and issue of share capital.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under
the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group is a member of the
Professional Insurance Brokers Association Limited and
is required to maintain a minimum net assets value of
HK$100,000 at all times.

35.

36.

TEMBARE
FREBFIATEERABEIZZEA
CEEEREAEFEZAATMBL
ﬁ] o

WITEERA  FAAIFAEHBR
AEEHRERANTIE -

RAFEREAFERN TR
ZEMBRARAMELAREE ZER

%o

EXEKER

AEBEBREER  UBRAEERE 2
TR NEERFBERERER
2 AREAEBLERIERESRE
HTREBEZOFEAN - AEBZE
AREERIEER (RIERBEITER
BETELS (S FEEE) A
RRAGEAEBGEES(BEEFRAVH
MRE  GREEZEHRESEN T
iz BEB8TRARER) AEE

\

EEEEBEEREAKRANNBAREE
R EARE - BENIL - A%
BEBIEMNEERITER MK
BRBETRAEEEBEERRE -

AEBETHBRARATXREMBA
ANMEEEBEZEBRNIESFLHE
EHERZBE(RESNER - X
REMBARABTEEGMRMAZ
&5 L E (M ER) £ A (TSF(FR)
RN ZMRBEARRE - RIFESF(FRR -
XREMNBARARRREZRSE
% #8 #83,000,000/% JT 3k K F 2 &
BABRE 5% UABRSERE) - T
REEHZARNBTEGRR
AEEzZ—RNBARRZERERR
RiemazRE  XERMBERER
MR R IKE E¥{E100,0008 7T °
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Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS,
financial assets at FVTOCI, other debtors and deposits,
accounts receivable, loans and advances, amount due
from an associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, accounts payable, short-term bank borrowings,
bonds issued and other creditors. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivable from and
payable to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency risks.
Most of the Group’s principal businesses are conducted and
recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency of
respective group entities, except for certain receivables from
and payable to foreign brokers and bank deposits which
are denominated in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, United
States dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and Singapore dollar
(see notes 21, 23 and 24 for details). The executive directors
of the Company considered that the effect of currency risk is
insignificant as the Group has minimal exposure in Australian
dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and Singapore dollar and
there is the linked exchange rate system of Hong Kong
dollar against United States dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis in relation to foreign currency exposure has been
carried out by the management.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
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R Z R 2 BEREINMT - &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. €RIEAKREEEERKE(£)

Policies (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank balances,
loans and advances, accounts payable and short-term bank
borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of best lending rate arising from the Group’s
accounts receivable and loans and advances, market
savings interest rate arising from the Group’s bank balances
and accounts payable and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate arising from Group’s short-term bank borrowings. The
Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed below.

Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in
nature

Assets & &
Accounts receivable FE U B 5X
Loans and advances B & & 2 3

Bank balances #R 1745 &4

BERENZE R

7R 55 [ D e B B M R R UL BR K - IR
1THEER  BERNBR - BNBRREE
HERTEXBRZRSRENXE

G o
AR

AEEZRERBHEAREEEM
7RI B 0 BR K T B A R BB
2 BEBERAE  ARERITE
B2 1 B R B 2 A 2 T R R R
RAEBERRTERAEL BB
BITRERB D  AEEHEE
SHAERSBA R HERRM
m o

BREFEFEMEZEZHMTA

2019 2018
HK$’000

HK$’000

FERT FERT

Liabilities & &
Accounts payable & ffBR 3

Short-term bank borrowings %2 8 R 17 & 5k

3,303,365 5,312,777
218,249 19,150
1,106,537 285,344
1,289,049 1,491,919
231,173 460,225

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period and it is assumed that the amount of the above
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period was in
existence for the whole year and all other variables were held
constant throughout the respective year. A 50 basis point
(2018: 50 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates in respect of variable rate accounts receivable, loans
and advances, bank balances, accounts payable and short-
term bank borrowings.

2019
Change in basis points

+50

HK$’000
FERT

Increase (decrease) in (loss) profit after
tax for the year

ARE R R (B 1R ) i M 18 o0 O )

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has a delegated team to
compile the credit and risk management policies, to approve
credit limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 %

HK$’000
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37. cREAREEEEREEE)

REREBANREM(E)

ViE¥- &4

TYZHRES>WIHRERBREHAR
ZHMERBTAEE  UERERRE
HREMEERBESENRE2F —&E
ﬁE&ﬁﬁﬁHﬁﬂﬁEﬁAﬂair =l
HE3F T o 50(E & B (20184 : 501
EE)E @nb“ﬁwt@mufzré
U BR 3k R IRITHEH - B
FERF &Lﬁﬁfﬁmaméﬁru G
REEE) R -

2018
Change in basis points
-50 +50 -50

HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT

(12,976) 15,302 (15,302)
EEERS  HRNFARAEHZER
WARBRENMEL ZER - MHH

MERER 2 BREINTERRME -

1= & B B KO B 5 4
HEHDARERTREFZAET A%
B S BCEREREEMMER &
K&ﬁﬂﬁﬁmA%ﬁ#ﬂ%%ﬁz
ZEEEZHREE RBEERRR
Me  REBEERELRZR < B &K
BERBEENAREERR - Uit
EEERBREEHZSHRENRER
KRBT YRR TTE) - Eoh - AEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and . TREREEREERBE(Z
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBERETMGEE)
(continued)
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical AEBZwFHE 2 EFEER

locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no

significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor EUEREREFEFEER JitTJEE
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and 7 &L B 9%&&1.1.)\&%%%@)5
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances MIsE20 K21 2 B3 & B3 K FE UL BR
and accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 20 and 21. KRN ©

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because

the counterparties are financial institutions with high credit REEEIRcomEE  ZR1THE
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. BIEERRER -

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

BRNEE ° KEII?&EAETTE—

HREFH AREREEFREET

AEENABEERBRTRBEAT

Bl

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Internal credit rating Description RBERALATEZ
A RS B R t B TREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  12m ECL
1K = bz not have any past-due amounts debtor frequently 1218 BB iz B & 18
repays after due dates in full
HFEINBEARBREBEETMABBARIE  EBHA
KEEINHAEEHES
Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit 12m ECL

FER B

High risk
= B

risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

BREBEAMLERIINBER  EERREDHER
2 K & & A0

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

BRBEBRTIEELREERRE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

12@AEHEEEE

2HEHEEEE —
WA ZEHEFEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

THEBREEEE —
BEEEFEERE

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EEHFEEBEER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. R EAMREEEERBRK(Z)
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERRBERENMGE)
(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TREIAEEREERBEERE
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL BERIMIEERKREES:
assessment:

Internal credit
September 2019 rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount

201994 RBEENR PREARZAEHRFEESA fREAE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz THET

Financial assets at amortised cost

BEERETECEHEE
Other debtors, deposits and Low risk 12m ECL 52,788
prepayment (notes (i) & (i)
Hith R ERR - e REMFKE 16 [ B 1REAEBREEEE
(W7 22 () % (i)
Amount due from an associate (note (i) 18 Low risk 12m ECL 3,435
& M B & A B FRIA (B 22 (i) 16 [ B 1REAEBREEEE
Loans and advances 20 Low risk 12m ECL 2,826,592
ERRBR 1 [ Bz 12EAEREEERE
Medium risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 170,420
HE E B FHEBREEERE — UAREE
EERE
High risk Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 490,714 3,487,726
= AR 2HEREEESE — 284
EERE
Accounts receivable 21 Low risk 12m ECL 2,148,105
& 4 BR 3R 18 [ Bz PEAEHEEERE
Medium risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 451,907
T L R PHESRGEERE — U AREE
EERE
High risk Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,668,160 4,158,172
= | B SHERGEEEE —BRERFEE
BE

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. € EAKREEEERKXR(E)
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRREFM®E)
(continued)
Internal credit
September 2019 rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
2019594 RWBEETR NREARZHRBEEEE R A B
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TET TERT
Other assets (note (i) 19 Low risk 12m ECL 8,871
B0 & E (72 3) 16 [ B 1REAEBREEEE
Pledged bank deposits — general 22 Low risk 12m ECL 160,000
accounts (note (i) & 2| B 12EAEHEERBE
BEMBTER — —REP (W 230)
Bank balances and cash — segregated 23 Low risk 12m ECL 1,416,696
accounts (note (i) & 2| B 12EAEHEERRE
RITHBRRRESE — BALERP (W &3)
Bank balances and cash — general 23 Low risk 12m ECL 1,745,508
accounts (note (i) & 2| B 12EAEHEERRE

RITERERE — —REP (W2 ()

Notes: Bt et -

(0 Prepayment of HK$1,584,000 (2018: HK$2,552,000) under other (y HiEWER REEREMKEBEET
debtors, deposits and prepayment were not classified as financial 2 FB - 3 181,584,000 7T (20184 :
assets at amortised cost. 2,552,000/ 7T) I K 5 48 B 1% 2 85 X

et Bz @@EE -

(i)  The directors of the Company consider the impacts of the (iy ARREZRE BHEEBBZ¥Y
ECL are immaterial to the Group and no reconciliation of gross ZHAREEMSAETEKN - I ERE
carrying amount and loss allowances have been prepared. IRHAEEEBEEETHER -

The following tables show reconciliation of gross carrying TRINTHEER KRB EFE A K FE

amount and loss allowances that has been recognised for KWHFREFPRENERRDREREIR

loans and advances and accounts receivable from margin BH 2 HER -

client.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. €REAKREERERKER(E)
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERRBERENMGE)
(continued)
Loan and advances — loss allowance (note ii) BEXRBHN -EREEEMZI)

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(not credit- (credit-

impaired) impaired)

2HAEY 2HAEY

12m ECL FEER FEBR

1218 B & 4 (3 K B 4 (BBE Total
EEEE FERE) FERE) st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
(Note (i)
(H7 £(i)

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2018 (note (i) 2,674 2,170 33,974 38,818
201851018 2 BB &4 (M 72 ()

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial assets
as at 1 October 2018

R2018FI0AIEReMEEELX BIREBE D
- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL (149) 50 99 -
-BREAAEREERRERE2HEHREEER
- Transfer from lifetime ECL to 12m ECL 13 - (18) -

-BRHRREEERR2EAARSBEERRE

— Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial

assets transferred from 12m ECL

to lifetime ECL - 904 372,045 372,949
-dREEEREAEHEEREEERE

AR EERREACEYGEE

BEZENGERE
- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial

assets transferred from lifetime

ECL to 12m ECL (7) - - (7)
-cREEASPRBEEFEREBEEA

HHEEBRELECEHBEEREY

B EFE
- Net remeasurement of ECL due to change

in credit risk without transfer of stage (1,097) (31) (6) (1,134)
-REERRZSMNERRERZEH

EEBBECENNEFE

New financial assets originated or purchased 346 8,921 13 9,280
EFSIBAZHEREE

Financial assets that have been derecognised (1,246) (2,084) (892) (3,722)
ERIERZTREE

As at 30 September 2019 534 9,930 405,720 416,184
R2019F9H30H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. € EAKREEEERKXR(E)
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRREFME)
(continued)
Loan and advances — loss allowance (note ii) (continued) BARBY - EEEBEMZIE)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount of loans and advances EXRRBRZERREITHOT:
is as follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RE ERE FERER #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TER TER THER
As at 1 October 2018 2,499,762 35,691 8,127 2,543,580
2018510 A1H
As at 30 September 2019 2,826,592 170,420 490,714 3,487,726
2019 9730H

Emperor Capital Group Limited R EEHFEEBEER AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWK

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. €REAKREERERKER(E)
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRREFMLE)
(continued)

Accounts receivable from secured margin clients — loss EREEFFREFRM — EBREE
allowance

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(not credit- (credit-

impaired) impaired)

2HE 2HE

12m ECL FEEER FEEER

12EAFY (ERBE (BE%E Total
FEER FERE FERE) e

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
(Note (i)
(/1 & (i)

Loss allowance as at 1 October 2018 (note (i) 7,039 4,340 206,418 217,797
R2018F10 18 2 BB B (A7 it (1)

Changes in the loss allowance due to financial assets
as at 1 October 2018 ) .
R201BFI0AIRRERMEEEL B RBEEE

- Transfer from 12m ECL to lifetime ECL (483) 1 482 -
-BREAEHEEEREVZE L HENEEESE
— Transfer from lifetime ECL to 12m ECL 476 (476) - -

-BEHRSEEEREEARBEERR

- Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial

assets transferred from 12m ECL

to lifetime ECL - 76 482,094 482,170
-cRMEEBREAENEEBRRERE

THEREERREACEBGEERREL

EXEE8FE
— Net remeasurement of ECL arising from financial

assets transferred from lifetime ECL to 12m ECL 422 - - 422
- REEASPRBEEFEREREREA

HHGEEBRELZEHBEERRY

EXEE8FE
— Net remeasurement of ECL due to change in credit

risk without transfer of stage 12,234 5,182 20,665 38,081
-HEERREYMERREBE 2AH

FEEBEBZENNEFE

New financial assets originated or purchased 650 - - 650
EFSIBEBAZHEREE

Financial assets that have been derecognised (2,784) (3,091) (3,530) (9,405)
BERIEBRZEREE

As at 30 September 2019 17,554 6,032 706,129 729,715
#2019 9H30H

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
158 ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 £ #



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Accounts receivable from secured margin clients — loss

STATEMENTS

37. TREREEAERBE(E)
=& B B RORE (&

BREBHFFREF RS -~ BRER

allowance (continued) (&)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount of account receivable EREEFAFREFPFIBREAES
from secured margin clients is as follows: T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-EE FoEE EZER #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER TER THET TERT
As at 1 October 2018 3,823,811 1,022,845 653,307 5,499,963

201845 10A1H

As at 30 September 2019 1,993,571
7201949 H30H

451,907 1,558,160 4,003,638

Emperor Capital

Group Limited HEEFFEBEHFRAT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. €REAKREEEERKE(Z)

Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EERBRREFTGE)
(continued)
Movements in provision for impairment of loans and HZE20BFILFEZERRBETAR
advances and accounts receivable from secured margin EWERRFREFPERZBER R
clients for the year ended 2018 are as follows: FEIBRWOT
Impairment of loans and advances Total
EXRRBERZEE et
HK$’000
FTER
As at 1 October 2017 #2017 1081H 31,472
Provision for the year & N # {& 2,196
Amounts recovered during the year U Bl 7 & 5 (34)
As at 30 September 2018 720184 9H30H 33,634

Impairment of accounts receivable from secured margin clients Total
EREEBRAFREFRRZEE At
HK$’000

TERT

As at 1 October 2017 7 2017F10A1H 3,000
Provision for the year & A # 5 203,416
As at 30 September 2018 20184 9H30H 206,416

Notes: B it -

(i) Details of the reconciliation of impairment allowance measured in (i
accordance with HKAS 39 as at 30 September 2018 to HKFRS 9
as at 1 October 2018 has included in summary of effects arising
from initial application of HKFRS 9, please refer to note 2.

(i) As at 30 September 2019, credit impaired loans and advances (i)

of HK$85 million is secured by properties. In determining
the allowances for credit impaired loans and advances, the
management of the Group also takes into account the fair value
of collateral and the outstanding balance of loan receivables
individually taking into account of executable settlement plan
and restructuring arrangements with available forward looking
information. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
impairment provision for the current year is sufficient.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &

R2018F9A30R IR IEH B &£ A
395k 81 A2018F10B1H IR IE & 8
MR EERFOSR E 2 B EEE
HEFBHERVNTEREBYBERS
HAFERAEEZHEMRE  FH2
B sE2 o

M2019F9A30H - EEREBEE R &
3 285,000,000 JT Jh A ¥ % K
Ho-RNEBETEEREERLBAREE
N ASEEREENEEEFRZA
FEAREBRER REEGEH I
BRI R AT RITHER B R EHE
HRMEZAEEER - ARAIEER
BOAFEREREBBRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(continued)

The Group has established credit policies to ensure all loans
and advances are subject to credit risk assessment and
ongoing monitoring, including evaluation of customers’ credit
ratings, financial background and repayment abilities. ECL
assessment is carried out based on a close monitoring and
evaluation of the collectability of individual account and on
management’s judgement, including the current creditworthiness
of the borrowers, collateral value, the past collection history
and available forward looking information. The Group had
commenced legal proceedings against the borrowers of
these impaired loans of the outstanding balances totalling
approximately HK$367,947,000 (2018: HK$30,971,000) for
recovery, on which provision for impairment of HK$343,127,000
(2018: HK$30,971,000) was made as at 30 September 2019. As
at the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements, the
legal proceedings are still in progress.

As at 30 September 2019, 76% (2018: 86%) of the outstanding
balances in gross carrying amount were secured by sufficient
collateral. In determining the allowances for credit impaired loans
to margin clients, the management of the Group also takes into
account shortfall by comparing the fair value of listed securities
pledged as collateral and the outstanding balance of accounts
receivable from margin client individually taking into account
of subsequent settlement or executable settlement plan and
restructuring arrangements. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the impairment provision for the current year is
sufficient.

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the Group
has a policy for reviewing impairment allowances for accounts
receivable without sufficient collateral and those with default or
delinquency in interest or principal payment. ECL assessment
is carried out based on an evaluation of the collectability and
ageing analysis of the accounts and on management’s judgement
including the current creditworthiness, collateral value, the past
collection history and available forward looking information.

37. cREAREEEEREEKE)

= B BB &R E R 1E ()

Hat: (&)
(i) (&)

AEBEEHEEERE  UERHAE
BERLkBEFHZEERBRTGEREF
BETREIHERFPZEEFL
VHESREEZEITAR - BH
EEEBIBDEREREE ¥
BERIEERT KB 2 EEAREERRE
ZHE(BRESAEMNERAZERA
2 EFEREE BEER
AMBZAEEER - AKEEDR
7% % B B B 3 P 48 %8 #49367,947,000
7 7T (20184F : 30,971,000 7T) 2 &
EEEHNERARAEEFANK
[ B 7 - R2019F9A30H £ H KA
B # & 5343,127,000 7T (20184 :
30,971,000 L) - RZE4RE

SWMAE  AEFDDEETH -

(i) 2019494308 * 76% (20184 :
86%) IREBEZHAREELZHKRHIN
EHNERRER REETRETH
BREFCZEERBEEREBHER A&
BEREENERBSBAYLERAEKR
mZ EMEBESAFEASHFERFPA
EERCAREEERABSZERZIE
S W E B EF R 1% BB S Al BT B
HAEUREELHE - ARAEER
B O AFEREREBBERRE -

ARERNEEFEERR  AEEE
B @ N E R RN E
s A E  BRZ U R R ET A e AT R (E
BEIBER - BHEEEBEFGDE
REAREE 2 EERER ZRED
TIAREREZHE (BEREEE -
iR mEE - B EK S NATERE

ZBIBEMEER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MR

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

37. TREREEREERBE(E)

Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iiiy  (continued)

Management had set up the credit limits for each individual
customer which are subject to regular reviews by the
management. Any extension of credit beyond these approval
limits has to be approved by relevant level of management
on an individual basis according to the exceeded amount.
In determining the allowances for impaired loans to margin
clients, the management of the Group also takes into account
shortfall by comparing the market value of securities pledged
as collateral and the outstanding balance of loan to margin
clients individually. Impairments are made for those clients with
shortfall as at the year end and with no settlement or executable
settlement plan and arrangement after the year end. The Group
had commenced legal proceedings against the borrowers of
these impaired loans of the outstanding balances totalling
approximately HK$1,196,538,000 (2018: HK$325,110,000) for
recovery, on which provision for impairment of HK$584,325,000
(2018: HK$196,261,000) was made as at 30 September 2019.
As at the reporting date of the consolidated financial statements,
the legal proceedings are still in progress.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flow, bank borrowings and bonds
issued are the sources of funds to finance the operations
of the Group. The majority of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to floating rate and are renewable annually.
The Group’s liquidity risk management includes making
available standby banking facilities and diversifying the
funding sources. The Group regularly reviews the major
funding positions to ensure adequate financial resources are
available to meet their respective financial obligations.

As at 30 September 2019, the Group has available unutilised
banking facilities of approximately HK$3,349 million (2018:
HK$2,279 million).

The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HEEEFEEBEBR AT
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 4 &

1= & B by &R B &k (&)

Bra (&

(iii) (&)

EEEBHYSEANEFR T EHRERE
BrEHRTNIEERE - EABEK
EEEZAERBEZ2HEEAER &
HERANNEZENE RETHE
BEESRZBEERNEER A%
B EEE N E B S B Y A
M BEMERSHERFPAEER
CREEBEHABZERZEBR B
RREREBERZELMRFLH
B EE BT RITHEBFEIRE
rZEBPELRE - A&EEEM
ZEREE R 4% 491,196,538,000
7 7T (20184F : 325,110,000 7T) 2 A&
EEEHNERARBBEEZFANK
@& 3% H20194F9A308 & H & R
B B 18 /5584,325,00078 JT (20184 :
196,261,000/8 7T) - Rz S A 815
HKERESBAHY  ARFLRMEET
q:| °

REBE SRR

NEELERERE |ITERKLER
TEFRBNASBERKEMTCES
KR - AEEZ KZERITRHEARS
FEFNERMERT R SFFUERE -
AREBZRABELEBREESERG
ABAZERRITRERBE SRR
Zixlt - AEETHRTEEESHN
Mo AERATESZEAMERER
ENEESEZHMBEME -
R2019F9H30R * AEBEFRIEFHAM
M) A {5 A 2 $R 1T Rt & 493,349,000,000
7 7T (20184F : 2,279,000,000 7T) °
TREBEZSEAAHNARBRIALSR
BEoZRBEAERASHESRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. €l EREEEEREEK(Z
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) RENE S R (E)
Liquidity table HEBEE XK

Repayable
on demand Over Over
or less than 3 months to 1 year to
3 months 1 year 5 years

AREXRS =@EANEL —F Bk Total
=EAREER E—F ERF et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

30 September 2019 2019495 30H

Accounts payable J& B & 1,564,292 1,564,292

Other creditors (excluding bonds interest) 7,906 7,906
HiwENER(TBEEEST L)

Bonds issued (including bonds interest) 673,094 2,364,840 3,137,132
EETES(BEEFNER)

Short-term bank borrowings (note) 231,173 231,173
RERITE (M 7))

2,476,465 2,364,840 4,940,503

Repayable
on demand Over Over
or less than 3 months to 1 year to
3 months 1 year 5 years

ARERS =@ANRLE —FE Total
“ERAREE E—F ERE 4ot

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT FERT FERT

30 September 2018 2018595 30H
Accounts payable F&{ B& 3% 1,835,634 - - 1,835,634

Other creditors (excluding bonds interest) 7,212 - - 7,212
HiENER(TREESNE)

Bonds issued (including bonds interest) 31,847 1,031,470 1,979,632 3,042,949
BEETES(BEEHENE)

Short-term bank borrowings (note) 460,225 - - 460,225
R HERITIE R (M L)

2,334,918 1,031,470 1,979,632 5,346,020

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M B®KRMEE
For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note:

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the 'repayable on demand or less than 3 months’
time band in the maturity analysis. As at 30 September
2019, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank borrowings amounted to HK$231,173,000 (2018:
HK$460,225,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to HK$231,255,000 (2018: HK$461,102,000).

Fair value

Except as detailed in the following table, the executive
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts

of financial
consolidated financial

liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
statements approximate their fair

values:

As at 30 September 2019 720194 9H30H

Bond issued =% 1T1E %

cREREERERBE(E)

RBEEERE)
Ha: WEBRBRMEEGRZ RITHERK

TEt Aoz AEE ke =
BARNEZEIBFBAR - R20194F
9A30H ' ZEWMITHERZAME
N4 #4858 5231,173,000 7T (2018
1 460,225,00078 7T) © &£ & E A
SEZGBMRR EERBBITA
ANABEITERBEEEZRKIANERER -
BEEHEZSRTERBEREE
HEATE M B ERBREE -
EE A RFMBEZRE R R
4 4 /231,255,000 7T (20184F :
461,102,000/ 7T) °

AT
BRRTRFLESN  ARRMITES

RN R A W R IR B SE A AR A
Rree@MARcFRRELERFAFE

BE

As at 30 September 2018 74201895308

Bond issued & 31T &%

Fair
value
AV
HK$’000
FH&T

Carrying
amount

fRMEE

HK$’000
FERT

2,813,544

2,831,862

2,785,040 2,781,215

This liabilities are classified under Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019 & #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHwERME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &
38. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3. TRMEERECRMBBEEE

Offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that covers similar financial instruments that are either:

° offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position; or

° not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited ("HKSCC”) and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a
net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
dealers, brokers and brokerage clients that are not to be
settled on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group, deposit placed with
HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since the
right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable
following an event of default.

TERAEZEBERRESZ AR BNITLAE
FREELHIBUBERRRZ S
MEENMNESRAE  BE:

o RAKEZEAMBMRKAK
HZBUT/ TR =X

o AN EEBEIELEMIL &N LR
EHMBARKANEHEZBUR
BMIA-

REASEEZEFRGEEBRAT
(BEEREEDMBLEANBEL 2FE
FEEERZ AKREEAEEAA R
BTN AEMHREEREEE
RERKLEANBHEBREMNENEEER
T MAKEERRFIBRELELHE -

BN - AEE A G AR 98 B AT HE
Mo ABRELEEFEFPEFERERA
MATAGEE 2 BB MENER M
AEBEERFREAEFENTHE
8 o

BRERBESATIETEBAWIEHEZ
EERON B RN BEREE 15
B RBEARBCEBEFPALER
MRIBEMTAEE KA @AM
m (BEAREMRE RS MES)
FTHRRBEBEERRELEAZREYL
TR AEREAMBARRARANEE 2T
B TARCHER SR 2K HER
ERNBELEEBHEMHR T AIRBIBT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

38. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2019

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets
set off in the
statement of
financial position
REBBMRR KA
KH2ERRA
tHEEZAR
HK$°000

TET

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial

assets
ERALHEE
Pt
HK$’000

TERT

Financial assets £ W& &

Amounts due from clearing house, dealers,
brokers and brokerage clients

BUWEER 258 BEAR
BEEBEPZHE

3,555,318

Deposits placed with clearing house

ERREEfzRE

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial liabilities
set off in the
statement of
financial position
REHMRRRA
b PARE
tREBEZAR
HK$’000

THERT

Gross amounts

of recognised

financial

liabilities

ERACHEARE

BB

HK$’000

TER

Financial liabilities % & & &

Amounts due to clearing house, dealers,
brokers and brokerage clients

ERLEER 58 BLAR
BLEEBEPIHA

1,691,153

REFFZRERRAT
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(126,861)

(126,861)

38. sRMEERTRMAGENE)

2019 9H30H

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in
the statement
of financial
position
RE B R &
REJz&mM
EEZEH
HK$°000

TET

3,428,457

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented in
the statement
of financial
position

R B MR &
REJz&m
BEZEE
HK$’000
THERT

1,564,292

Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
position
I EAMERRRA
HHzHEHNE

Financial Collateral
instruments received

¢RMIE EBHRERR

HK$’000 HK$°000
TRz TR

Net
amount
B8
HK$°000
TET

(29,473)  (3,052,512) 346,472

Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
position
I EREBRRERA
K2 HEME

Financial Collateral
instruments received

¢RMTA CBKERE

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR

Net
amount
FBH
HK$’000
THERT

(29,473) 1,534,819



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 30 September 2019 #; Z201949A308 It F &

38. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 38. TREENRECHEEKEZ)
Offsetting (continued)
As at 30 September 2018 201849 H30H

Gross amounts Net amounts of
of recognised financial assets Related amounts not set off
financial assets presented in in the statement of financial
Gross amounts set off in the the statement position
of recognised statement of of financial I &R BB RRRA

financial financial position position Bz HEHNE
assets REERRXA NGRSO Financial  Collateral Net
ERALHEE RH2ERR WEFZzE&R instruments received amount
ZBE LREECHE BEZFHE ¢WMIE EUEMRR B

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TR TR TR TR TR

Financial assets £ @& &

Amounts due from clearing house, dealers,
brokers and brokerage clients 5,683,090 (158,857) 5,524,233 (29,534)  (5,206,461) 288,238
FEREER 258 BREAR

Deposits placed with clearing house 9,320 - 9,320 - - 9,320
FRR&EERZES

Net amounts
Gross amounts of financial
of recognised liabilities Related amounts not set off
financial liabilities presented in in the statement of financial
Gross amounts set off in the the statement position
of recognised statement of of financial B R B RO R A

financial financial position position 2 HBA
liabilities  REERRXA R B AR & Financial  Collateral Net
ERASHAR KH2EER RE32&R instruments received amount
BB cREEzEE EEZFE SRMIE CWERSR B8

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TR TR Ti#x TiEx Tz

Financial liabilities £ & & &

Amounts due to clearing house, dealers,

brokers and brokerage clients 1,994,491 (158,857) 1,835,634 (29,534) - 1,806,100
EREER X598 BRAR

BExBEFPZHA

Emperor Capital Group Limited #E2Z45EEBEBRE QT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

Year ended 30 September
B Z9H30RILLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTET FTET FTET FTET

RESULTS #¥ &

Revenue i A 835,077 986,215 1,241,000 1,314,270 B NP1
Profit (loss) before taxation 519,634 634,264 793,655 660,048 (230,219)
B i A& A (85 18)

Taxation 18 (89,383) (108,643) (134,470) (110,853) (28,487)
Profit (loss) for the year 430,251 525,621 659,185 549,195 (258,706)

FE &N (E18R)

As at 30 September
B Z9H30RILLEFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FHET FHET FHET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER A&

Total assets & 2 4 1& 6,600,478 8,164,009 9,516,344 10,771,667 PKLIAVE]
Total liabilities B & 42 %8 (2,961,574) (3,914,293) (4,382,234) (5,339,796) MINAANKL)!
Net assets /& & & 3,638,904 4,249,716 57134110 5,431,871 BEREREL

Emperor Capital Group Limited HE2Z%&EEBEBRE QA
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